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20 1 4/ 1 5 At a Glance

of vehicles mobilised  
at the scene

94% 

Employment
2037

Queenslanders

 1 46
with RACQ  
20+ years

Average service

7 years  

RACQ-branded 
batteries installed

 1 57,000



sponsorship of Queensland’s community rescue 
helicopters is a vital service acknowledged by our 
members, with 99.6% supporting funds being used 
for this purpose

$5.25 million

27,4 1 2
weather-event claims  

worth almost 

$200 million  
received

Last year , 97.8% of members also told us they 
trusted RACQ , and other key measures were:

98.9% Friendliness of staff

97.5% Knowledge of staff

96.5% Helpfulness of staff

96.2% Enthusiasm of staff

96.8% Prompt service

96.0% Accessible services

RACQ members saved  

$66 million  
in premium discounts from 
their Club’s insurance arm 



RACQ delivers  

$ 1 20 million  
in value to members and 
returns a net surplus of 
$50 million 

More than  

 1 .34 million  
calls for assistance 
answered in an average  
of 20 seconds

RACQ Travel recorded  
total gross sales of  

$50 million

$ 1 .5 billion  
in funds under management 

RACQ attended  

904,725  
roadside assistance jobs 
with a world-leading 94% 
mobilised at the scene

Massive growth in sales of 
movie tickets to members 
who bought  

500,000  
tickets, up from 4 1 0,000  
the previous year

Net assets worth  

$ 1 . 1  billion 

RACQ patrols and 
contractors delivered and 
installed more than  

 1 57,000  
batteries to get members 
mobile again

RACQ’s congestion-busting 
Incident and Recovery 
Team attended more than  

49,000  
jobs, with an average 
response time of under  
 1 9 minutes

20 1 4/ 1 5 Highlights

Our Vision
RACQ – a must for all Queenslanders.

Our Mission 
By 2030, RACQ will be a multi-dimensional 
membership organisation offering Queenslanders 
multiple reasons for joining and multiple ways to 
benefit from being part of the RACQ community . 

Our Purpose
We exist for our members and judge everything we 
do by how well it serves their needs.

Our Philosophy
We are proud to be a mutual, operated for the benefit 
of our owners, the members of RACQ. We combine 
the mind of a business with the heart of a club. 

Our Values 

Generosity of spirit

Being of service

Inspiring trust

Dedication to excellence
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Like most businesses, we operate in 

a dynamic, evolving and disruptive 

environment. As a result , the RACQ is 

adapting as a business and as a mutual. 

We are innovating to suit the times and 

to meet the demands of Queenslanders. 

Since we formed  1 00 years ago, our 

members’ needs have continued to 

change. Over the decades, we have 

constantly transformed our services 

from purely motoring to embrace their 

mobility and lifestyle needs. Never 

have their needs been as diverse and 

never have the motoring and insurance 

markets been so competitive. We strive 

to be equally proactive and reactive 

to the market and to our members’ 

requirements and we monitor that pulse 

by regularly asking members what they 

want from us and what they think of 

our performance. We will continue to 

be an organisation that represents the 

interests of all Queenslanders – both 

city and country – and to maintain, and 

ideally , increase our relevance to all.

The RACQ provides benefits to members 

that only a mutual organisation can. 

While we don’t return a traditional 

financial dividend to members, we are 

focused on delivering value through 

our products and outstanding service, 

through the benefits and privileges 

we attach to membership, and by 

generating a reasonable financial surplus 

for reinvestment into new services and 

products. We also increase quality , 

service standards and value-for-money 

every year . The value we provide spans 

all of our businesses. For example, in 

20 1 4/ 1 5, RACQ members saved almost 

$66 million in premium discounts while 

we delivered $ 1 20 million in value to our 

members across a range of products  

and services. 

On face value, some people might 

see mutuals as being conservative. 

But at RACQ , we’re as entrepreneurial 

and commercially-minded as any 

organisation of similar size. The RACQ 

board is invested in, and engaged with, 

the transformational journey that the 

organisation is undertaking and we 

have made significant investments in 

technology improvements to deliver 

better services to members. The board 

recognises that we need to move with 

the times and have a broader range of 

products, services and revenue streams. 

Advocacy 

We are proud of our strong and vigorous 

record of accomplishment in advocacy , 

which has been embedded in the culture 

and fabric of RACQ since the Club was 

formed in  1 905. 

We are the peak body to represent the 

interests of RACQ members and the 

motoring public – whether that takes 

the form of lobbying governments for 

prioritised road funding, pushing the case 

for safe and affordable motoring,  

or ensuring pressures on motoring and 

home insurance premiums are reduced.

Our advocacy is and must be for all 

Queenslanders, not just members 

in south-east Queensland . We want 

to reduce the tyranny of distance 

for Queenslanders by ensuring that 

important rural and regional roads 

receive appropriate attention and 

funding. We had significant success on 

that front in 20 1 4/ 1 5 with local, state and 

federal governments on major projects, 

including the Bruce Highway , the 

Toowoomba Second Range Crossing and 

the Warrego Highway , as well as some 

major Brisbane arterial roads. 

The RACQ is acutely aware of hip-pocket 

issues and the rising cost of motoring 

for members. Sadly , Queensland has the 

most expensive fuel and car registration 

costs in Australia. We are extremely 

disappointed in the rising cost of car 

registration in the 20 1 5 Queensland 

Budget (after a three-year freeze) and 

we will continue to challenge all levels 

of government to keep future increases 

in motoring costs to a minimum. Fuel 

prices continue to be volatile and profit 

gouging by fuel companies is still evident 

on a weekly basis – with no justifiable 

reasons. RACQ’s Fair Fuel Price webpage 

provides a daily barometer for motorists, 

allowing them to shop around for the 

best price during their travels. As well, 

the RACQ wants to see transparency in 

the link between what motorists pay in 

fuel taxes to the Federal Government 

and what is spent on building and 

maintaining roads.

President’s  
Report 
While the RACQ is 
undergoing a period of 
unprecedented change 
and transformation, 
the board is  1 00% 
committed to ensuring 
the organisation 
remains true to our 
core philosophy 
of operating for 
the benefit of our 
members. 
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The debate around mandating the use 

of biofuels is a healthy one. We were 

opposed to the notion of an ethanol 

mandate but we have changed our 

position to agree with the modest 

mandatory 2% ethanol blend , proposed 

by the Queensland Government. 

However , motorists should continue to 

have freedom of choice, with fuel options 

available at bowsers everywhere in 

Queensland . We will continue to fight the 

good fight on many advocacy fronts and 

issues, always with our members’ best 

interests at heart. But advocacy itself 

does not produce an income stream, so 

we need financially strong and viable 

profit-generating arms of our business, 

such as our insurance company , to 

produce a dividend that allows us to 

continue the advocacy work .

Governance

At last year’s annual general meeting 

(AGM) , members approved the board’s 

proposal for a new and contemporary 

constitution that provides the RACQ with 

more flexibility to adapt to a changing 

business environment. In practical terms, 

membership will be extended to include 

all RACQ customers who have a loan, 

assistance, or insurance product (other 

than CTP) with us. The new constitution 

also enables us to bring directors onto 

the board with requisite skills and 

expertise, but who would previously  

have been ineligible. 

We have also reduced board 

membership from  1 0 to nine and 

simplified the zonal arrangements by 

also reducing those from six to five, 

which also decreases administration 

costs. I welcome to the RACQ board 

Arthur Gearon, who was appointed on 

April 23, 20 1 5 to represent the South 

West Zone. 

The AGM last year also agreed to add 

former Queensland Governor and 

Commonwealth Governor-General, the 

Honourable Dame Quentin Bryce AD CVO, 

and former Queensland Governor , the 

Honourable Penelope Wensley AC , to  

our distinguished list of 23 Honorary  

Life Members. 

It has been an honour and a privilege for 

me to be elected president of the RACQ 

as an iconic Queensland and Australian 

organisation that provides a unique 

service to our state. The esteem in 

which RACQ is held by Queenslanders is 

reinforced to me when I attend our Gold 

50 events for those loyal members who 

have been with us for half a century  

or more. The appreciation they show , 

the trust they have in our brand , and 

the stories they tell about their lifetime 

involvement with the RACQ , provide  

proof and reassurance that we create 

true value for our members and that 

we are entrenched in the fabric of 

Queensland life.

I also would like to pay special tribute to 

two past presidents who sadly died this 

year . RACQ’s longest continuous serving 

board member , Mr Ron Gray , represented 

the Central Queensland Zone from  1 972 

to his retirement in May 2006, and was 

president and chairman from 2002 to 

2005. Mr David Barnett represented the 

South East Zone from September  1 98 1  

to May 2002, and was president and 

chairman from  1 996 to  1 999. Both were 

Honorary Life Members of the Club. 

I also would like to acknowledge two 

distinguished and long-serving RACQ 

directors — our immediate past president 

Geoffrey Leddy and former president 

Richard Pietsch. Geoff completed a long, 

successful and distinguished career with 

the RACQ at last year’s AGM, serving three 

years as president and  1 6 years as a 

director . As a civil engineer specialising in 

road design, Geoff was uniquely placed 

to contribute his considerable expertise 

to the Club and its key stakeholders. 

He represented the Club on the State 

Government’s Bruce Highway Crisis 

Management Committee and on the 

Brisbane City Council’s Parking Taskforce. 

Richard was a member of the Group 

Investment Committee, is a former 

RACQ president and chairman, and 

was chairman of the RACQ Foundation. 

He made an enormous contribution 

to our organisation over  1 7 years and , 

as a former deputy chairman of the 

Inglewood Shire Council, was a strong 

voice for the interests of regional 

Queenslanders.

Finally , on behalf of our board , members, 

and customers, I want to thank our 

management team and staff for 

their dedication, commitment and 

achievements over the past year . I also 

thank my colleagues on the board for 

their dedication to good governance  

and focus on guiding RACQ to a 

sustainable future.

Nigel WF Alexander 
President
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We know that our members and 

customers place enormous trust in 

the RACQ brand and organisation. We 

welcome that trust and place a high 

value on it. RACQ has spent several 

years doing the ‘hard yards’ and laying 

the foundations for a more efficient 

and effective business, and we are very 

confident that the next few years will 

allow members to reap the results and 

rewards that they have told us they 

value. This will translate to even better 

value and higher standards of traditional 

services and products for them, along 

with new offerings to enhance the 

RACQ’s relevance over the next decade 

and beyond . We want members, now 

and in the future, to look at the totality of 

our value proposition across the whole 

range of offerings we provide, not just 

one individual element. We are confident 

that , increasingly , Queenslanders will find 

that there are many and varied reasons 

why it pays to belong to the RACQ.

RACQ knows that we must operate 

commercially strong and competitive 

businesses in order to underpin and 

sustain the services and benefits we 

provide, but we also never lose sight 

of our primary purpose of improving 

the wellbeing of our members. We call 

it ‘combining the mind of a business 

with the heart of a club’. Our business 

performance continues to match and 

surpass industry standards on most 

measures, while a commitment to sound 

investment decisions of members’ 

reserves ensures we remain a financially 

strong and healthy organisation. While 

RACQ is not a listed company , we have 

evolved to think and act like one so we 

remain competitive and viable in an  

ever-changing business world , and  

to continue to deliver on our promise  

to members. 

In many aspects of the business, 20 1 4/ 1 5 

was the final phase of our preparation 

and foundation for a new era of change 

and innovation. We continue to drive 

efficiencies through our business 

improvement program across the 

organisation and to challenge and  

reform our business models. Technology 

upgrades worth $65 million have 

dramatically changed how , when and 

where we connect with our members, 

especially in increased online 

engagement (with website visits up  1 0% 

and online sales up  1 22%), through new 

responsive websites that automatically 

adapt to desktop, laptop or mobile 

devices. We know that RACQ members 

are always looking for a better customer 

experience that is faster and easier , as 

well as demanding new products. The IT 

upgrades also allow us to respond to 

changing demands and markets in a 

timely fashion. The objective of all of this 

has been to continue our evolutionary 

journey to becoming a more agile and 

leaner business, while delivering positive 

outcomes for our current and 

prospective members.

While the RACQ might be  1  1 0 years 

old , we pride ourselves on being 

contemporary , relevant and digitally 

savvy , with a commitment and ability to 

adapt rapidly to members’ needs. The 

competition has never been fiercer in 

every aspect of what the RACQ does, 

with rivals and new players encroaching 

on our traditional businesses every 

year . But the RACQ has two key points 

of difference: we are a mutual company 

owned by members that exists purely to 

provide them with benefits and services; 

and we are a truly Queensland-based 

and proudly Queensland-focussed 

business. 

In 20 1 4/ 1 5, the 
RACQ continued to 
prove itself as an 
even stronger , more 
commercially focussed 
business with an  
iron-clad commitment 
to providing great value 
and service to its  
 1 .2 million members  
and their families.

Group  
CEO’s Report
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We have local call centres staffed by 

Queenslanders and we have the largest 

and most comprehensive roadside 

assistance network in the state, with  

750 vehicles (the nearest of our  

 1 3 competitors has no more than  

50 vehicles). These are unique 

propositions that others can’t match.

We provide the same standard of 

roadside assistance service no 

matter where a breakdown occurs in 

Queensland – remembering that we 

have a world-class roadside repair or 

‘go rate’ of 94% of vehicles, despite the 

geographical expanse of the state. That 

equality of service is the essence of 

what RACQ is about – operating to the 

benefit of all members irrespective of 

where they are. 

RACQ is built on two traditional pillars – 

roadside assistance and insurance, with 

the former our traditional ‘hero’ product. 

In 20 1 4/ 1 5, we were able to generate an 

impressive $ 1 70 million of value, with  

$ 1 20 million going to members through 

benefits and the remaining $50 million 

in financial surplus adding to the 

consolidation of member’s reserves. The 

direct benefits to members took the form 

of minimised charges for core services 

such as roadside assistance, delivering 

industry-leading standards of service, as 

well as a wide range of lifestyle products, 

discounts and rewards. 

Despite competition in the insurance 

market continuing to escalate, the RACQ 

Insurance business grew in 20 1 4/ 1 5 by 

3.7%. We were delighted that average 

insurance premiums reduced by 6% for 

motor and 4% for home and contents. 

These lower premiums were assisted 

by lower reinsurance costs and lower 

internal input costs. 

This is an outstanding result given that 

we were beset by three major weather 

events, which created a record year for 

insurance claims. We received 27,4 1 2 

claims worth almost $200 million.  

Yet the speed , efficiency and largely 

hassle-free way we processed 

claims is testament to the quality and 

professionalism of the insurance team. 

In the aftermath of Brisbane’s November 

hailstorm, the worst in a decade, we 

began processing claims within 48 hours. 

Continuous innovation

Other organisations talk about 

continuous improvement – at RACQ 

our commitment is to continuous 

innovation in every aspect of our 

business. We operate in a highly 

competitive environment and our 

main lines of business continue to be 

under threat. The digital revolution is 

driving unprecedented changes to our 

traditional business model, services and 

revenue streams. RACQ is responding 

to the challenges on many fronts and 

we are moving with and ahead of the 

times, while still providing a commitment 

to superior customer service. While we 

have made a significant upgrade to our 

website resulting in a massive increase 

in online transactions, customers who 

need to talk to a customer service officer 

are able to use our new ‘Click to Chat’ 

tool. We are very proud that RACQ’s 

online experience was rated top of the 

insurance industry in recent surveys.

Changes last year to our constitution 

and membership architecture have 

enabled us to significantly increase 

our membership base to a forecast  1 .5 

million and , hence, improve our financial 

viability . We know that there are 

challenges in keeping and winning 

the hearts and minds of current and 

new members who want tailored and 

personalised services and products 

that are quick and convenient. Part of 

our response has been our Connected 

Member Program that has made us more 

digitally accessible to our members. 

Many of our proposed new business 

offerings are logical extensions of what 

we have done historically or are doing 

now. RACQ Insurance is extending its 

offering with pet insurance and life 

insurance, while we have recently 

launched Home Assistance , which 

provides the same level of trusted 

service and quality assurance for 

domestic emergencies as we have done 

for over  1 00 years for vehicle owners. We 

now also offer a $26 Lifestyle product 

that unlocks all the benefits for the 

growing number of Queenslanders who 

don’t require assistance or insurance 

cover . Our free2go program provides 

young drivers from age  1 6 with free and 

discounted roadside assistance, as well 

as other discounts and benefits, and 

the concept has been adopted around 

Australia and internationally by other 

motoring clubs.

We have innovated and refreshed the 

RACQ brand in our marketing campaigns 

to a contemporary look and feel and 

to connect with the premise that 

Queenslanders trust us with their  

most valuable assets. 
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Our new “I’m with RACQ ” campaign 

highlights one of the key components 

of our value proposition – the depth and 

breadth of the services and privileges we 

offer – and provides a series of everyday 

scenarios about the comfort and 

reassurance that Queenslanders feel  

by being associated with our brand and 

the knowledge that “It pays to belong”.

Financials

RACQ earned a net surplus of $50 million 

in 20 1 4/ 1 5 – a drop on the previous 

financial year but an appropriate and 

commendable result given some 

challenging conditions. The result was 

influenced by several factors:

• the impacts of several extreme 

weather events that led to a  

record year for insurance claims and 

losses exceeding event allowances;

• the impact of record-low interest 

rates on the investment market;

• increasing pressure from competitors 

in every aspect of our business; and

• a significant increase in depreciation 

charges due to further investment 

in technology and development 

projects.

Net assets stood at $ 1 . 1  billion, up  

$5 1 million on the previous year .

The value dividends we returned to 

members were spread across many 

parts of the organisation, but good 

examples were the extended towing 

benefits for Silver roadside assistance 

members and providing insurance 

premium discounts of $66 million. 

RACQ is ever mindful of the need to 

invest its reserves wisely to maximise 

returns. Given record low interest 

rates for cash and the potential for 

strong growth in the property market , 

RACQ opted to invest in Brisbane’s 

CBD, acquiring a 4-star NABERS-rated 

building at 60 Edward Street. We will 

occupy several floors while receiving 

good rental income from the remainder 

of the building and over the next few 

years, the purchase will allow the RACQ 

to consolidate staff at two key sites 

(Edward Street and Eight Mile Plains). 

RACQ people

RACQ members can rest assured that 

they will continue to be serviced by a 

highly professional team of motivated , 

dedicated and customer-focussed 

staff. The culture and performance 

standards of our 2000-plus employees 

is most closely aligned to a commercial 

business, but with an over-riding 

emphasis on outstanding customer 

service, which is what the board and 

executive team instil from the top down. 

The composition, experience and skill set 

of RACQ’s staff continues to evolve and 

move with the times. Initiatives such as 

the One Performance Review system, 

which provides a high-quality , uniform 

approach to staff performance reviews, 

and a new talent acquisition approach 

are ensuring that we have the most 

suitable, engaged and productive  

staff possible. 

The RACQ board also continues to evolve 

with our new President Nigel Alexander 

and a new director Arthur Gearon. They 

and their colleagues on the board 

continue to provide clear strategic 

direction for a new-age RACQ that 

remains Queensland’s largest member-

owned organisation and true to its  

core values of inspiring trust , being of 

service, dedication to excellence, and 

generosity of spirit. 

My thanks go to all our staff, contractors 

and agents who worked so hard 

to ensure we continue to deliver 

outstanding service to our members, 

and to our board of directors for their 

unstinting support and guidance.

Ian A Gillespie  
Group Chief Executive Officer
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Roadside assistance 
has been the 
cornerstone of RACQ’s 
connection with 
Queenslanders for  
more than a century .

In 20 1 4/ 1 5, RACQ defied the national 

trend of other motoring clubs and 

increased our membership by three 

percent , despite a number of new 

competitors trying to muscle into our 

traditional roadside assistance space 

and offer a far inferior service. RACQ 

maintains the lowest priced roadside 

assistance in the country and delivers 

the highest quality service compared 

to all other auto clubs, despite the 

geographically challenging environment 

that Queensland presents. This high 

quality-low cost approach is a conscious 

decision we make to return value to 

members. After freezing the roadside 

assistance fee in 20 1 3/ 1 4, we kept the 

increase to a bare minimum of just  

$2 in 20 1 4/ 1 5.

RACQ answered  1 .34 million calls for 

assistance and attended 904,725 

roadside incidents in 20 1 4/ 1 5, an average 

of more than 3600 calls per day and  

 1 50 calls per hour throughout our vast 

state. We answered calls for help within 

an average of 20 seconds and were on 

the scene of 85% of incidents within  

40 minutes. We proudly maintained 

our world class roadside repair rate of 

94%. A statewide network of 750 rescue 

vehicles enabled us to attend call outs in 

an average response time of 23 minutes. 

Our team of qualified mechanics and 

diagnostic technicians ensured our 

members got moving again with the 

installation of  1 57,000 RACQ-branded 

batteries. None of this is the product  

of good luck: our patrols have the  

best equipment , training, technology  

and vehicles.

We have invested heavily in further 

training, technology upgrades, and the 

provision of mobile and digital devices 

for our roadside assistance patrols to 

keep them the best in the world at what 

they do. It gives them online access to a 

wide range of technical content , with the 

goal of ensuring that they can quickly 

troubleshoot most problems. This also 

converts to members getting consistent 

great service and customer experience, 

regardless of where in the state they 

break down. 

RACQ continued its provision of traffic 

clearance and incident management 

services for the Queensland Government , 

Brisbane City Council and Queensland 

Motorways. This 24/7 service provides 

real time traffic intelligence and 

surveillance in south-east Queensland 

to improve traffic flow and reduce 

congestion, especially on major roads  

in peak hour . In 20 1 4/ 1 5 the Recovery  

and Incident Management team 

attended to more than 49,000 priority 

jobs with an average response time of 

under  1 9 minutes.

During the year , our RACQ Auto Glass 

service grew significantly , which we 

again see as a validation of the trust 

members place in everything we do. Our 

network of more than 30 vans attended 

to almost 62,000 fitting, repair or tinting 

jobs – a  1 9% increase on 20 1 3/ 1 4. 

The profile of RACQ’s assistance services 

is changing and evolving to meet the 

demands of members and additional 

products will come on line over the next 

year . Our new Home Assistance product 

will bring the same trust , comfort level 

and high-quality service with a range of 

tailored and affordable options for home 

emergencies, from plumbing to electrical 

and glazing. 

•  1 6,666 motor vehicle 
inspections, including  
pre-purchase and warranty 
expiry checks, conducted  
by accredited mechanics

• 20,793 inquiries handled  
by the RACQ Motoring  
Advice Team.

Assistance 
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RACQ Insurance has 
been protecting the 
most valuable assets  
of Queenslanders  
since  1 97 1 . 

The business recorded an outstanding 

year in 20 1 4/ 1 5 in one of the most 

challenging environments in the history 

of the organisation. 

In 20 1 4/ 1 5, we grew our motor and home 

businesses, while average premiums 

reduced by 5.9% and 3.9% respectively . 

We maintained trust and satisfaction 

with our members in the face of major 

weather events and increasingly 

fierce competition from interstate and 

international rivals. Three major weather 

events – Tropical Cyclone Marcia, the 

November hailstorm in Brisbane, and 

major south-east Queensland flash 

flooding in May – combined to make  

it a record year for insurance claims  

for RACQ. 

While these events had tragic and 

devastating consequences for many 

communities around the state, the 

RACQ is enormously proud of the way 

we responded and looked after our 

members when they needed us most. 

The figures for 20 1 4/ 1 5 are staggering:

• A total of 27,4 1 2 claims worth almost 

$200 million were received

• The November hailstorm generated 

more than  1 8,000 home and motor 

claims worth $94 million

• Overall claimant satisfaction for 

20 1 4/ 1 5 was almost 94%.

We believe it is in times of crisis that 

RACQ shows its point of difference 

from our competitors. Our loyal repairer 

network delivers a rapid and efficient 

response, embracing the same ‘customer 

first’ ethos and culture that permeates 

RACQ as an organisation. Small cosmetic 

vehicle repairs can now be done 

overnight. Our first-rate personalised 

customer service with teams that hit 

the ground within 24 hours of major 

natural disasters, speed of assessment , 

and resolution of claims is why we have 

minimal disputed claims and a record 

satisfaction score of almost 94%. 

Further proof comes from an industry-

leading renewal rate of 93% (compared 

to the average of 85%).

Over the past two years RACQ has 

invested heavily in technology upgrades 

and business improvements. We now 

have a deeper understanding of the 

needs and risk profile of our members 

and are able to respond and tailor 

products accordingly . Unlike some 

of our competitors, we don’t need 

to ask you unnecessary questions 

because we already know you well. 

The improvements and upgrades have 

also enabled us to create a better fraud 

prevention framework , which in the 

short and long term helps us to keep 

premiums down.

Growth in motor insurance continues to 

defy national trends and is one of our 

strongest performers, with one in five 

Queensland drivers having the peace  

of mind of being able to say , “I’m with 

RACQ ”. Home insurance has been in the 

political spotlight , especially in northern 

Australia, following a number of natural 

disasters over several years. We remain 

concerned about unnecessary 

government interference in markets  

that are functioning normally , with the 

Federal Government appointing a 

Northern Australia Insurance Premiums 

Taskforce. RACQ is an active participant  

in the taskforce. We continue to provide 

insurance to North Queensland and  

have not applied any embargoes to 

high-risk areas.

Looking forward , we are excited by the 

range of new tailored products and 

services that we are rolling out , including 

affordable and comprehensive pet , term 

life, small and medium enterprise, and 

health insurance products – all of which 

we’re confident will continue to service 

the growing and changing needs of 

Queenslanders.

• Policy growth of 3.7% 
in 20 1 4/ 1 5 despite an 
increasingly  
competitive market

• Over  1  in 5 Queensland 
vehicles and 4 1 5,000 
Queensland homes are 
covered with RACQ Insurance

• One of the largest CTP 
insurers, with 667,078  
policies in force

• Total annual written  
premium income in  
20 1 4/ 1 5 of $704 million

• 27,412 event claims, worth 
almost $200 million, received 
in the year

• Overall claimant satisfaction 
of almost 94% in 20 1 4/ 1 5

Insurance 
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The RACQ membership 
model is undergoing 
the biggest changes 
in its history , which 
will boost our base 
to around  1 .5 million 
members – meaning 
one in every three 
Queenslanders will be 
an RACQ member .

The approval at last year’s AGM to 

change the membership architecture 

and create new pathways to belong 

to RACQ will soon allow anyone with a 

renewable RACQ product to become a 

member . This acknowledges the role 

that product holders make to our Club 

and the overall financial sustainability 

of the organisation. In the meantime, 

Queenslanders continue to join RACQ 

and we grew our total membership 

in 20 1 4/ 1 5 to  1 ,2 1 5,54 1 . This was an 

increase of  1 0,462 or 0.87 percent 

– double the membership increase 

we experienced in the previous year , 

supported by a member retention  

rate of 90%.

The long-term loyalty of RACQ members 

is very strong and very rewarding for our 

staff. More than 750,000 members have 

been with us for  1 0 years or more and the 

number of lifelong members continues 

to grow. We now have 35,455 Gold 50 

members who have been with RACQ for 

50-plus years – in 20 1 4/ 1 5, almost 5000 

of them were acknowledged at  1 0 special 

events held around the state.

In line with RACQ’s philosophy of 

constantly adding value and extra 

services for members at minimal or 

no cost , we grew our base of roadside 

members who took up Roadside Extra, 

Plus Care, Ultra Care and RACQ Ultimate. 

They now number around 650,000 – 

more than half of our total membership. 

In response to members’ feedback , we 

also removed the joining fee from July  1 , 

20 1 5. At the same time, we know growing 

numbers of people are choosing not to 

own a vehicle, which is why we have 

delivered a new Lifestyle category with 

extra benefits for just $26pa. We now 

have almost 20,000 Lifestyle members. 

In 20 1 4/ 1 5, increasing numbers of 

members took advantage of many of  

the benefits that RACQ offers. RACQ is 

now the largest reseller of movie  

tickets in Australia, with 500,000 

discounted tickets worth almost  

$5 million purchased. We also 

sold  1 80,000 discounted theme park 

tickets worth over $ 1 0 million to 

members. In addition, the ever-popular 

Show Your Card and Save program 

delivered even greater choice and 

savings. The program allows members to 

make significant savings on everything 

from fitness to flowers and magazines 

to mowers. In total over the year , RACQ 

delivered savings and value to members 

of over $ 1 20 million. We also almost 

doubled the number of restaurants 

participating in the Dining Rewards 

program, with 5 1 2 now offering  1 0-20% 

discounts to members.

Increasingly , members turned to RACQ’s 

network of 39 travel agents in  1 3 offices 

around the state to meet their travel 

needs. We opened new travel offices 

in Capalaba and Hervey Bay , and the 

business grew  1 4% mainly across 

packaged tours and cruises with our 

major partners APT and Princess Cruises.

It is our vision that by 2030, we will 

be a multi-dimensional membership 

organisation offering Queenslanders 

multiple reasons to join. We want 

members to enjoy the many benefits 

that RACQ membership provides now , 

and will continue to explore new 

products and services in the future.

•  1 26,54 1  drivers aged  1 6- 1 9 
belong to RACQ’s youth 
program free2go 

• RACQ Travel achieved gross 
sales of $50 million in 20 1 4/ 1 5

Membership
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In a vintage crop of loyal RACQ members, 90-year old Audrey ‘Aud’ Thompson stands out 

from the crowd . Aud has been with the Club for an incredible 65 years and is one of its 

three longest-serving members.

Aud joined the RACQ in  1 950 (his father had been a member since the  1 920s) when he 

and new wife Barbara were planning their driving honeymoon to Orange, Sydney and the 

Jenolan Caves in New South Wales in his father’s  1 937 Chevrolet ute. The Chevy managed 

the trip just fine, but Aud and Barbara did take advantage of the reciprocal ‘pilot car’ 

service that RACQ had with interstate clubs to help navigate their way into Sydney . 

“I’ve been driving since I was eight years of age and I’ve never had a ticket or any black 

mark against my name,” says Aud proudly . “I’ve used a wide array of RACQ services 

plenty of times over the years, although thankfully I haven’t needed the breakdown 

service too often.”

But RACQ roadside assistance was there for Aud just six months ago when petrol 

suddenly starting leaking from his car outside Warwick . An RACQ patrol plugged a hole  

in Aud’s fuel tank and organised for his car to be repaired the same day . Aud was able  

to drive home to Stanthorpe, although he stopped driving on his 90th birthday in June.

Aud was among the Gold 50 members honoured at one of RACQ’s regular morning teas 

for lifetime members and says he received a massive thrill at being honoured at the 

function and receiving a take-home hamper . 

“Over the years, most of my family have been RACQ members and we all say  

‘It pays to belong’,” he says.
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When natural disasters 
tear apart Queensland 
communities and 
significantly damage  
or destroy their hopes 
or important facilities, 
the RACQ Foundation  
is there to help.

Since 20 1  1 , the RACQ Foundation has 

helped to pick up the pieces of 

devastated communities around the 

state and provide the funds they need to 

rebuild . The Foundation has been helping 

communities ravaged by natural disaster 

– whether that’s flooding, cyclones, 

storms or other natural disasters such as 

drought. It also supports charities that 

deliver services to stricken communities. 

At RACQ , we know that community 

facilities are very much the lifeblood of 

regional and remote towns.

In the past four years, the RACQ 

Foundation has helped a total of  

 1 6 1  organisations throughout Queensland 

with total approved funding of  

$7.82 million. In 20 1 4/ 1 5 Mother Nature 

tested the resolve and resilience of  

many communities around our state.  

The Foundation responded to the 

impacts of Cyclone Marcia, the drought , 

hailstorms and floods. 

In 20 1 4/ 1 5, the Foundation approved 

funding of $376,223 to  1 2 community-

based groups, including:

• A $50,000 donation to Outback 

Futures, a not-for-profit organisation 

committed to providing professional 

and consistent allied health services 

to rural and remote Queensland – 

especially in times of drought

• $ 1 9,800 for Narnia Kindergarten  

and Preschool to install shade  

sails providing sun protection,  

after Cyclone Marcia destroyed  

trees on the premises

• Just under $45,000 for Rockhampton 

Horse Riding for the Disabled 

Association to replace a covered 

riding shade structure destroyed  

by Cyclone Marcia

• $35,000 to the Bundara Kindergarten 

Association to restore landscaping 

and gardens damaged as a result of 

Cyclone Marcia

• $25, 1 7 1  to the Olympic Football Club 

Inc. to replace equipment damaged 

in the November 20 1 4 hailstorm.

The RACQ Foundation operates 
under its own board , which 
met three times in 20 1 4/ 1 5. The 
Foundation is chaired by RACQ 
Limited director Ms Fay Barker . 

Other directors are:

• RACQ Group CEO, Ian Gillespie

• Former RACQ Executive 
General Manager Corporate 
Governance Paul Williams 
(external director)

• Queensland University 
of Technology Deputy 
Vice-Chancellor Corporate 
Programs and Partnerships, 
Professor Peter Little 
(external director).

Any Queensland community 
organisation that has been 
impacted by natural disaster 
can apply for RACQ Foundation 
funding. Funding guidelines can 
be found at racq.com, or call 
the Foundation Administrator 
on  1 3  1 905 or email at 
racqfoundation@racq.com.au.

RACQ Foundation
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Community
RACQ is immersed in 
community activities 
and sponsorships 
around the state as part 
of our corporate social 
responsibility and our 
deep engagement 
with Queenslanders 
wherever they live.

RACQ sponsorship of Queensland’s 

community helicopter rescue services 

continues as a beacon of hope for ill  

and injured Queenslanders in their  

hour of need .

Take the example of the rescue of five 

boaties who were airlifted from an island 

north-east of Mackay after their craft 

drifted away . Their SOS message on 

the sand was spotted by the RACQ CQ 

Rescue helicopter . We were also there to 

help former Federal MP Ian Cameron, who 

was almost buried alive after he fell into 

a grain silo at a farm south-west of Tara. 

The Toowoomba RACQ CareFlight rescue 

helicopter airlifted him to hospital and he 

arrived in a stable condition.

Last year  1 0 RACQ-branded choppers 

and their highly-trained crews operated 

out of bases on the Gold and Sunshine 

Coasts, Toowoomba, Bundaberg, Mackay , 

Rockhampton and Mt Isa. They flew 2056 

mercy missions, day and night , covering 

the length and breadth of Queensland . 

RACQ regards the $5.25 million annual 

sponsorship as a vital community service 

and it is acknowledged by our members, 

with 99.6% supporting funds being used 

for this service.

Get Ready Queensland 

RACQ’s Get Ready Queensland is a year-

round all-hazards disaster preparedness 

and resilience-building program with 

the Queensland Government. It aims 

to position Queensland as Australia’s 

most disaster-resilient state, integrate 

all preparedness activities year-round 

under one brand , and to encourage all 

Queenslanders to participate. This is 

achieved through partnerships with  

local councils, public education and 

useful resources. 

Road safety education

One of RACQ’s core activities is to 

promote road safety , particularly 

among children, teenagers, and senior 

citizens, who wish to keep driving to 

maintain their independence. The 

Club’s Community and Education team 

delivered a comprehensive program in 

20 1 4/ 1 5, including:

• 800 Streets Ahead presentations  

to  1 9,398 students

• 56 Kids and Cars presentations  

to 58 1  parents and carers

• 6 1  Road Safety Docudramas to  

5339 secondary school students

• 6630 Years Ahead presentations  

to older drivers.

North Queensland Games

RACQ has a four-year sponsorship with 

the North Queensland Games, which last 

year attracted 5024 competitors in  

40 different sports. The NQ Games are 

a natural fit for RACQ as we have a long 

history of supporting and developing 

Queensland communities, and being 

there when our customers and 

communities need us most. 

We recognise the importance of the 

Games as a healthy focal point for 

local communities, and the opportunity 

provided in identifying and developing 

local and regional sporting talent.

RACQ MotorFest 

In 20 1 5, the largest car show in 

Queensland paid fitting tribute to the 

Club’s untold World War I history with 

a special display commemorating 

the Returned Soldiers’ Transport Corp. 

About  1 0,000 motoring and history 

enthusiasts attended the Eagle Farm 

Racecourse event , with more than 500 

prestige, vintage and collectible vehicles 

on show. The day raised $8600 for the 

RACQ Helicopter Rescue Network. 

Helping communities 
everywhere 

RACQ Insurance again sponsored the 

largest female-oriented fun run, the 

International Women’s Day Fun Run, 

with proceeds going to Mater chicks 

in pink . Almost  1 2,000 participants and 

spectators were involved on the day 

helping to raise more than $2 1 0,000.

About 2000 school students from  

 1 20 schools in Queensland showed their 

interest in invention and innovation 

at the RACQ Technology Challenge, 

Maryborough. The 24-hour street race 

in a wide variety of human-powered 

vehicles showcased the skills and 

knowledge of tech-savvy teenagers. 

RACQ continued its partnership with 

Australia Zoo, contributing about $78,000 

in 20 1 4/ 1 5 to the Wildlife Warriors charity 

through zoo hospital-tour admissions 

and the Steve Irwin Gala Ball.
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Walk into the RACQ 
head office at Eight 
Mile Plains and there 
is no shortage of 
‘RACQ family’ to give 
you a warm greeting, 
according to Patrol 
Network Manager  
Terry Peters.

In the 33 years that Terry has worked 

for RACQ , he has grown close to a lot 

of long-serving staff whom he regards 

as family . He has progressed through 

a range of roles in the organisation’s 

roadside assistance division and has 

become a highly effective member of 

the team that helps RACQ members 

when they need it most. 

Terry started as a fleet vehicle mechanic 

in  1 982 but soon moved to the front line 

as a patrol officer . He counts himself 

lucky that he has been able to find a 

fulfilling career path with RACQ , which 

has provided him with regular training 

and the opportunity to create an evolving 

skill set that has kept him an engaged 

and productive employee.

Working with, and for , members in the 

RACQ’s flagship service, Terry and his 

colleagues have a 24/7 customer  

focus where staff take pride in going  

the extra mile. “It’s a club with a big 

heart ,” says Terry .

RACQ is a proud and large employer of 

Queenslanders. On June 30, 20 1 5, the 

RACQ Group directly employed 2037 staff 

with an average length of service of over 

seven years. Another 883 also worked for 

RACQ as contract service providers and 

agents. A measure of the commitment 

of staff is the attendance at the 20 1 5 

Milestone Lunch, which recognises 

long-term service contributions. It was 

attended by 240 employees, contractors 

and agents, including more than  1 00 who 

have worked for RACQ for 20+ years.

RACQ’s commitment to staff training, 

learning and development is unwavering, 

with a total of nearly  1 00,000 hours of 

training across the group in 20 1 4/1 5.  

As well as improving staff engagement , 

it is about building the capability of 

employees to better service the needs 

of members and to give them multiple 

reasons for joining – or for staying – as 

members and customers. 

The RACQ is proud to offer a Female 

Mentoring Program that recognises 

diversity and the role it plays in  

business. The program has been  

running since 2009 and has had a total 

of 66 participants, with an emphasis on 

frontline and operational leaders. The 

program has had a significant impact 

on broadening the diversity of our 

management teams.

Technology plays a pivotal role in our 

engagement with staff and has been 

a genuine enabler and enhancer of 

internal communications. We enable our 

workforce to be connected and engaged 

with each other and innovations such 

as Yammer , a private internal social 

network that promotes collaboration 

and conversations, has enhanced that. 

Around  1 500 staff – or almost 75% of our 

workforce – began using it within the first 

six months of operation.

The staff performance focus has 

been sharpened and there is a group 

commitment to ensure that staff 

capabilities are aligned with the 

corporate strategy and that is  

managed through recruitment  

and performance reviews.

We are committed to ensuring the 

safety and health of our employees, 

members and all those who interact with 

us. Safety is particularly important on 

the road for our patrol officers, vehicle 

recovery officers, and Recovery and 

Incident Management Team. In 20 1 4/ 1 5, 

we established the Group Safety 

Management System for which Recovery 

and Incident Management attained 

certification to AS480 1 .

Every meeting begins with a workplace 

health and safety discussion. Two-way 

consultation on a range of health and 

safety matters is carried out regularly 

with employees and contractors. Among 

the initiatives launched in 20 1 4/ 1 5 was 

the Ergonomic Champions Program 

in which office-based employees are 

trained to provide additional ergonomic 

support and education to their  

co-workers and new staff.

People
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The greatest measure 
of success at RACQ 
is knowing that 
our members and 
customers feel valued , 
engaged and satisfied . 

Measuring  
Success 

• 95% Overall Satisfaction  
Rate of Members

Last year , 97.8% of members also told us they trusted RACQ ,  
and other key measures were:

0 20 40 60 80 100

The challenge for us continues to be to adapt to the growing and changing needs of 

our members. We intend to remain top of mind for Queenslanders when it comes to 

assistance, insurance and lifestyle needs. Our overall satisfaction score with members 

remains at a level that is the envy of most companies – with 95% of RACQ members 

saying we met their expectations in 20 1 4/ 1 5. As Queensland’s largest club, we know 

that our many and long-term members are our best advocates in their communities.

There is a reassuring pattern of satisfaction with roadside assistance, which recorded 

a staggering 99.4% among members. That satisfaction level is only outdone by our 

helicopter rescue sponsorship, which scored 99.6%. In total we recorded satisfaction 

levels of 90% and above in 32 product and benefit categories.

Friendliness of staff – 98.9%

Prompt service – 96.8%

Enthusiasm of staff – 96.2%

Knowledge of staff – 97.5%

Helpfulness of staff – 96.5%

Accessible services – 96.0%
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Corporate Governance 
Statement As at 30 June 20 1 5

RACQ is committed to 
operating its business 
ethically and with high 
standards of corporate 
governance. 

In 20 1 4/ 1 5 the following 
enhancements were made to 
RACQ’s corporate governance:

• Adoption of a new 
constitution by RACQ 
members at the 20 1 4 AGM

• A new board committee 
structure was implemented , 
further aligning the key 
entities in the Group

• The board established and 
formalised the Group’s risk 
appetite 

• A number of improvements 
were made to governance 
processes during the 
reporting period including:

– Establishing a Group 
Delegations Policy 
that identifies those 
matters and authorities 
reserved to the board 
and those delegated to 
the Group CEO and other 
management

– Review of the model for 
board skills assessment 
and reporting to adopt a 
more contemporary and 
simplified model.

QUEENSLAND COMMUNITIES

MEMBERS

RACQ LIMITED BOARD

 

 

 
INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE

GROUP 
INVESTMENT 
COMMITTEE

RISK AND 
COMPLIANCE 
COMMITTEE

GROUP 
AUDIT  

COMMITTEE

EXTERNAL
AUDIT  

INTERNAL
AUDIT  

GROUP CEO

GROUP 
GOVERNANCE AND 

REMUNERATION  
COMMITTEE

Good corporate governance is a fundamental part of the culture and business of the  

RACQ Group. The Board of Directors is responsible for the governance of RACQ and its 

controlled entities (RACQ Group or Group). 

What follows is a brief summary of the RACQ corporate governance framework .  

The full 20 1 5 Corporate Governance Statement is available in the Corporate Governance 

section on RACQ’s website (racq.com/corporategovernance).

The RACQ governance framework

RACQ is a public company limited by guarantee, governed by its constitution, by-laws, 

the Corporations Act 200 1  (Cth), common law principles and principles of mutuality .  

A key entity in the RACQ Group, RACQ Insurance Limited , is also subject to the 

governance standards that satisfy the Australian Prudential Regulatory Authority 

(APRA) Prudential Standards that are applicable to general insurers.

The board has adopted the following corporate governance framework to ensure 

that the interests of members are protected . The corporate governance framework is 

designed to support the operational and regulatory frameworks within which the RACQ 

Group operates.
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RACQ Directors 
and Officers

Anthony (Tony) M Gambling

Elizabeth M Jameson 

Campbell J Charlton 

Fay L Barker

Nigel WF Alexander 
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Stephen J Maitland

Bronwyn K Morris

Karl D Morris

Arthur J Gearon

Ian A Gillespie
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Nigel WF Alexander 
BBus, MAppFin, FCPA, FAICD

President and chairman and member of 

the Group Governance and Remuneration 

Committee (director , South East Zone, 

since 2000). Chairman of RACQ Insurance 

Limited and Club Insurance Holdings Pty 

Ltd . Mr Alexander is the current chief 

executive officer of North Australian 

Pastoral Company Pty Limited and also 

a director and vice-president of the 

Australian Automobile Association. He is 

a qualified accountant , having previously 

worked in corporate finance roles with 

both Australian and international banks.

Bronwyn K Morris 
BCom, FCA, FAICD

Vice-president and deputy chairman, 

chair of the Group Governance and 

Remuneration Committee and member 

of the Group Audit Committee (director , 

South East Zone, since 2008). Director 

of RACQ Insurance Limited and Club 

Insurance Holdings Pty Ltd . Ms Morris 

specialised for more than 20 years 

as a chartered accountant in audit 

and corporate services. Ms Morris is a 

Queensland councillor of the Australian 

Institute of Company Directors and is 

chairman of LG Super and the Finance 

and Audit Committee of the Gold Coast 

20 1 8 Commonwealth Games Corporation. 

She serves as a director of a number of 

entities, including Watpac Limited and 

Collins Foods Limited . Ms Morris was 

previously a partner of the current audit 

firm, KPMG (retired  1 996), at a time when 

KPMG undertook an audit of RACQ , but 

was not a director of RACQ at that time.

Fay L Barker 
OAM, FAICD

Member of the Group Investment 

Committee and Group Governance  

and Remuneration Committee (director , 

North Zone, since 200 1 ). Chairman of 

RACQ Foundation Pty Ltd . Ms Barker 

is chairperson of the Townsville 

Hospital Foundation and is a former 

Townsville City councillor . Her other 

current directorships include chair of 

the Benefactors of the Good Shepherd 

Nursing Homes Limited and chair of the 

Virginia Chadwick Memorial Foundation. 

Ms Barker is a former director of the 

Townsville Port Authority , the Great 

Barrier Reef Marine Park Authority and 

a former member of the James Cook 

University Council.

Campbell J Charlton 
BCom, LL.B, FCA (Rtd), MAICD

Member of the Group Audit Committee 

and the Risk and Compliance Committee 

(director , Far North Zone, since 20 1 4). 

Mr Charlton has a 35-year career as a 

chartered accountant and corporate 

advisor . He is a member of the James 

Cook University Council, the Queensland 

Government’s Commonwealth Games 

Legacy Advisory Committee and the 

Executive Committee of the Australia 

Papua New Guinea Business Council. 

Mr Charlton is also a director of North 

Queensland Cowboys Rugby League  

Club Limited . He is a former chairman  

of Tourism Tropical North Queensland 

and Advance Cairns Limited . He was also 

chairman of the judging panels of both 

the Australian Tourism Awards and the 

Queensland Tourism Awards.

Anthony (Tony) M Gambling 
BBus, BEcon, MBA, FCPA, FAIM, FAICD, JP (Qual)

Chairman of the Group Investment 

Committee (director , Central Zone, 

since 2005). Director of RACQ Insurance 

Limited and Club Insurance Holdings Pty 

Ltd . Mr Gambling is general manager 

of Mango 4 Office Technology and a 

former director of companies involved 

in the commercialisation of emerging 

technologies. He is a member of the 

Central Queensland Committee of the 

Australian Institute of Company Directors 

and the Queensland Small Medium 

Enterprise Committee of CPA Australia.

Arthur J Gearon 
BBus, MAICD

Member of the Group Investment 

Committee and Risk and Compliance 

Committee (director , South West Zone 

since April 20 1 5). Mr Gearon is a grain, 

cotton and cattle producer on the  

Darling Downs. He is the vice-president 

of AgForce Grains Limited , and a member 

of the Northern Regional Panel of Grains 

Research and Development Corporation.

Elizabeth M Jameson 
LL.B (Hons I), BA, FAICD, MQLS

Chair of the Group Audit Committee 

and member of the Group Governance 

and Remuneration Committee (director , 

South East Zone, since 2008). Director 

of RACQ Insurance Limited and Club 

Insurance Holdings Pty Ltd . Ms Jameson 

is the principal and founder of corporate 

governance consultancy Board Matters 

Pty Ltd and associated firm Board Matters 

Legal (since 2002). Ms Jameson was 

formerly a partner of a national law firm 

(in their corporate/commercial division). 

She is chair of Brisbane Girls Grammar 

School and , since May 20 1 3, has been  

a board member of the Queensland 

Theatre Company .

RACQ Directors 
and Officers continued
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Ms Jameson has also served on 

the boards of more than 20 other 

organisations in the private,  

not-for-profit and public sectors  

during the past 20 years.

Stephen J Maitland 
OAM, RFD, BEc, MBus, LLM, FAICD,  
FCPA, FCIS, FAIM, SFFin

Chair of the Risk and Compliance  

Committee and member of the Group 

Audit Committee (director , South East 

Zone, since 2008). Mr Maitland has a 

background in finance, is a qualified 

accountant and company secretary 

and the principal of corporate advisory 

firm Delphin Associates. He was chief 

executive officer of the Queensland 

Office of Financial Supervision ( 1 992 

to  1 999) and had a 20-year career in 

corporate banking. Mr Maitland is also 

a director of Australian Unity Limited  

and several private companies and is 

president of the Queensland Division  

of CPA Australia.

Karl D Morris 
BCom, MSAA, FAICD, FFin

Member of the Group Investment 

Committee and the Risk and 

Compliance Committee (director ,  

South East Zone, since 20 1 0). Mr Morris  

is executive chairman of Ord Minnett 

Limited and has a 27-year career 

in financial services and wealth 

management. Mr Morris is chairman and 

master member of the Stockbrokers 

Association of Australia Limited , 

chairman of QSuper , member of the 

Catholic Foundation Archdiocese of 

Brisbane and member of the Brisbane 

Lord Mayor’s Business Advisory Board .

Geoffrey C Leddy 
BTech(Civil), LGE, GDM, FAICD 
(retired 20 November 20 1 4)

Former president and chairman of RACQ 

and member of the Group Governance 

and Remuneration Committee (retired 

director , Wide Bay-Sunshine Coast 

Zone,  1 998-20 1 4). Mr Leddy has extensive 

experience as a consulting engineer and 

company director and was chairman of 

Club Insurance Holdings Pty Ltd and also 

a director of RACQ Insurance Limited and 

the Australian Automobile Association 

until his retirement from RACQ on  

20 November 20 1 4.

Richard J Pietsch 
OAM, FAICD (retired 3 1  December 20 1 4)

Former chairman of the RACQ 

Foundation Pty Ltd , former president 

and chairman of RACQ , former 

chairman of RACQ Insurance Limited 

and former director of Club Insurance 

Holdings Pty Ltd (retired director , 

South West Zone,  1 997-20 1 4). As a 

grazier , Mr Pietsch is a former director 

of the Australian Stud Sheep Breeders 

Association Limited and president of 

Agforce Sheep and Wool Board , and 

is a director of Coolmunda Pastoral 

Company and Queensland Agricultural  

Training Colleges. 

Ian A Gillespie 
BA, Dip Laws(BAB), FCEOI, MAICD, FAIM, CCEO

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr Gillespie is a director of RACQ 

Insurance Limited , Club Insurance 

Holdings Pty Ltd , RACQ Foundation  

Pty Ltd , RACQ Operations Pty Ltd and 

other RACQ Group entities, as well as a 

number of associated entities, including  

Australian Automobile Association, 

Australian Motoring Services Pty Ltd , 

Australian Club Consortium Pty Ltd , 

Confederation of Australian Motor 

Sport , Intelematics Australia Limited 

and a board member of Global Mobility 

Alliance. Mr Gillespie has over 30 years’ 

experience in a broad range of industries 

in Australia and internationally at CEO 

and senior executive level.

Bradley D Bowes 
Phd , FGIA, FCIS, MAICD

GROUP COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr Bowes is company secretary for all 

the legal entities within the RACQ Group 

and heads the Group Secretariat with 

responsibility for group-wide corporate 

governance matters, including managing 

all matters associated with the efficient 

operation of the various boards and 

committees and of each annual general 

meeting. Mr Bowes is a chartered 

company secretary with over 20 years’ 

experience in senior management and 

similar governance roles in both private 

enterprise and the public sector across  

a range of industries.
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GROUP EXECUTIVE TEAM

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Ian A Gillespie 
BA, Dip Laws(BAB), FCEOI, MAICD, FAIM, CCEO

CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER

Gregory R Booker 
MBA, MMgmnt , MAICD

GROUP COMPANY SECRETARY

Bradley D Bowes
PhD, FGIA, FCIS, MAICD

GENERAL COUNSEL AND CHIEF RISK OFFICER

Darryn L Hammond
B.Sci (Hons), LLB, G.Dip Corp Gov,  
MQLS, FGIA, FCIS

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, INSURANCE

Bradley P Heath 
B.Bus Acc, GAICD

GROUP CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Michael J Lonergan  
(from  1  January 20 1 5)
B.Bus, FCPA, G.Dip App Fin

GENERAL MANAGER HUMAN RESOURCES

Heidi K Suominen
B.Bus (HR Mgt), G.Dip Training and Dev

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, OPERATIONS

Glenn A Toms 
BBus, G.Dip Fin & Inv, FFin, FAIM, GAICD

EXECUTIVE GENERAL MANAGER ADVOCACY

Paul S Turner
GAICD

CHIEF DEVELOPMENT OFFICER

Christopher P Walsh 
BCom

GROUP CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Leanne M Muller  
(retired 3 1  December 20 1 4)
BCom, G.Dip Fin & Inv, ACA, GAICD

Paul S Turner

Darryn L Hammond

Christopher P Walsh 

Michael J Lonergan  

Gregory R Booker 
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The RACQ offers 
members a free online 
classified service, 
making it easy to 
buy and sell second-
hand goods, including 
vehicles.

We have an online 
shop with hundreds 
of products from 
motoring and outdoors 
accessories to books 
and hardware.

RACQ members can 
access our free Aussie 
Assist service, giving 
access to travel 
and transportation 
assistance in the event 
of medical emergency 
or a family death.

The RACQ offers 
reciprocal rights 
with other motoring 
organisations around 
Australia and the world , 
providing access to a 
global program with  1  1 5 
million auto club 
members in more than 
50 countries. 

You can buy a new car 
through our RACQ car 
brokerage service with 
independent car buying 
experts negotiating  
for you. 

Did You Know?
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The directors present 
their report together 
with the consolidated 
financial report of the 
group comprising The 
Royal Automobile Club 
of Queensland Limited 
(RACQ) and its controlled 
entities, for the year ended 
30 June 20 1 5 and the 
auditor’s report thereon. 

Directors

The following persons were directors of 

RACQ during the whole of the financial 

year and until the date of this report , 

except where otherwise indicated:

• Nigel W F Alexander  

(Chairman from 2 1  November 20 1 4);

• Fay L Barker;

• Campbell J Charlton;

• Anthony M Gambling;

• Arthur J Gearon  

(appointed 23 April 20 1 5);

• Elizabeth M Jameson;

• Stephen J Maitland;

• Bronwyn K Morris; 

• Karl D Morris;

• Geoffrey C Leddy  

(former Chairman,  

retired 20 November 20 1 4);

• Richard J Pietsch  

(retired 3 1  December 20 1 4).

Further information on the current 

RACQ directors is contained in the RACQ 

Directors and Officers section of this 

Annual Report on pages  1 8 to 23. This 

section also includes their qualifications, 

experience and particular responsibilities.

Directors’ meetings

The number of RACQ board and committee 

meetings as well as each RACQ director’s 

attendance at those meetings during the 

financial year , are set out on page 28.

Officers

The persons who were officers of RACQ 

during the financial year are detailed in 

the RACQ Directors and Officers section 

of this Annual Report on pages 22 and 23.

Principle activities, strategy  
and objectives

The principal activities of RACQ during  

the year included the provision of 

motoring, insurance, membership and 

advocacy services. 

RACQ exists for members’ benefit  

and wellbeing. By 2030, RACQ will be  

a multi-dimensional membership 

organisation, offering Queenslanders  

multiple reasons for joining and multiple 

ways to benefit from being part of the 

RACQ community . 

To achieve this, RACQ will:

• Provide member value in a meaningful, 

relevant and compelling way ;

• Capitalise on the use of its respected 

and trusted brand ;

• Revolutionise member experience 

by investing in improvement and 

innovation that embraces new 

technologies; and

• Focus on sustainability that ensures 

relevancy and viability for future 

generations of Queenslanders. 

The RACQ Group Strategic Plan and 

Budget details the priorities, targets and 

activities that are being undertaken in 

pursuit of the strategy . The strategy is 

built around the following:

• Strengthening existing pillars  

of the business;

• Creating new pathways  

to membership;

• Diversifying into new revenue 

streams; and

• Becoming more efficient  

and effective.

Directors’  
Report
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In the short term, RACQ will continue  

its transformative journey in pursuit  

of a stronger , more relevant and 

sustainable business. Changes to  

RACQ’s membership architecture,  

flagged to members at last year’s 

Annual General Meeting (AGM), will 

fundamentally alter the way RACQ 

operates and enable more than  

 1 .5 million Queenslanders to experience 

why it pays to belong.

RACQ monitors its performance against 

the Strategic Business Plan and Budget 

through detailed financial analysis, 

including profit and loss, balance sheet , 

cash flows and capital expenditure 

reporting. Key performance parameters, 

including member satisfaction, retention 

and acquisition, products per members, 

policy growth and key financial ratios 

are used to measure performance 

throughout the financial year .

The President and Chairman’s Report 

and the Group Chief Executive Officer’s 

Report provide further details on how 

the Group’s activities assist in achieving 

RACQ’s objectives.

Review of operations  
(operating and financial review)

The net result of operations of the  

RACQ Group and its controlled entities, 

after tax and after making adequate 

provision for depreciation and all  

known contingencies, was a surplus  

of $50.2 million (20 1 4: surplus of  

$90.2 million). The key driver of the 

change in result , relative to the prior 

year , was the increased frequency and 

severity of weather-related insurance 

losses experienced in 20 1 5. 

Total revenue increased by  1  1 .7% over the 

financial year to $ 1 .1 1 billion, reflecting 

an increase in both insurance premium 

revenue and member subscription 

revenue, as well as a significant increase 

in recoveries from reinsurers following 

the large number of significant weather 

events during the period . 

Investment revenue increased to  

$57.9 million from $56.0 million 

throughout the financial year due 

primarily to proceeds from the sale  

of investments.

Expenses increased by  1 8.6% to 

$ 1 .04 billion, reflecting the increase in 

insurance claims expenditure resulting 

from the large number of significant 

weather events in 20 1 5.

RACQ acquired a new premise in  

the Brisbane CBD during the year , which 

increased property , plant and equipment 

assets from $76.7 million to $ 1 47. 1  million 

over the period . This building provides 

both rental income, with a significant 

portion of the building commercially 

leased , together with an operational 

footprint for RACQ. 

A review of operations is contained  

in the President and Chairman’s 

Report and the Group Chief Executive 

Officer’s Report. The review assesses 

membership, assistance products and 

services, roadside assistance, insurance, 

advocacy , travel, touring and community 

activities. 

Events subsequent to  
reporting date

There has not arisen in the interval 

between the end of the financial year 

and the date of this report any item, 

transaction or event of a material or 

unusual nature likely , in the opinion 

of the directors of RACQ , to affect 

significantly the operations of RACQ ,  

the results of those operations, or 

the state of affairs of RACQ , in future 

financial years.

Directors’ interests

Since the previous financial year ,  

no director of RACQ has received or 

become entitled to receive a benefit 

(other than a benefit included in the total 

remuneration received or receivable by 

RACQ directors as shown in the notes to 

the accounts) by reason of a contract 

made by RACQ or a related corporation 

with a director or with a company 

in which he or she has a substantial 

financial interest. 

Directors may obtain membership, 

insurance services and other services 

from the RACQ Group on the same terms 

and conditions as those obtained by  

all employees. 

Environmental regulations

RACQ’s operations are not subject to any 

significant environmental regulations 

under either Commonwealth or State 

legislation. However , the directors believe 

that RACQ has adequate systems in place 

for the management of its environmental 

requirements and are not aware of any 

breach of its environmental requirements 

as they apply to RACQ.

Directors’  
Report continued
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Indemnification and insurance 
of officers and auditors

RACQ has entered into an agreement 

with all current directors, some former 

directors and certain present and  

former executives of RACQ to indemnify 

them to the extent permitted by law 

against all liabilities that may arise from 

their position in RACQ or a controlled 

entity of RACQ.

RACQ holds a Directors’ and Officers’ 

Liability Insurance policy on behalf of 

current and former directors and officers 

of RACQ and its controlled entities.  

The directors have not included details  

of the nature of the liabilities covered ,  

the limit of liabilities covered , or the 

amount of premium paid in respect of the 

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance 

contract , as such disclosure is prohibited 

under the terms of the contract. 

Members’ guarantee

RACQ is a company limited by guarantee 

and has no share capital. In the event 

of winding up, all classes of members 

are liable to the amount of $2. 00 

per member . RACQ has  1 ,355,356 

guaranteeing members resulting in  

a total contribution of $2,7 1 0,7 12 upon 

winding up.

Auditor’s Independence 
Declaration

The Auditor’s Independence Declaration 

is set out on page 78 and forms part of 

the Directors’ Report for the year ended 

30 June 20 1 5. 

Rounding off

The RACQ is a company of a kind referred 

to in ASIC Class Order 98/ 1 00 dated  1 0 

July  1 998, therefore, in accordance 

with that Class Order , amounts in the 

consolidated Financial Report have been 

rounded off to the nearest one thousand 

dollars, unless otherwise indicated .

Signed in accordance with a resolution  

of the RACQ Directors.

Nigel WF Alexander 
President

24 September 20 1 5 
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 RACQ board and committee meetings

Director RACQ Board

Audit and Risk 
Management 

Committee 1  
Group Audit 
Committee2

Group 
Investment 
Committee

Group 
Governance and 

Remuneration 
Committee

Risk and 
Compliance 
Committee2

 A H A H A H A H A H A H

Mr N W F 
Alexander 9 9 – – – – – – 5 5 – –

Ms F L Barker 9 9 – – – – 4 4 2 2 – –

Mr C J Charlton 9 9 3 3 2 2 – – – – 2 2

Mr A M Gambling 9 9 – – – – 4 4 – – – –

Mr A J Gearon 
(appointed  
23 April 20 1 5) 2 2 – – – –  1  1 – –  1  1 

Ms E M Jameson 8 9 3 3 2 2 – – 4 4 – –

Mr S J Maitland 8 9 2 3 2 2 – – – – 2 2

Ms B K Morris 8 9 2 3 2 2 – – 5 5 – –

Mr K D Morris 9 9 – – – – 4 4 – – 0 2

Mr G C Leddy 
(retired 20 
November 20 1 4) 4 4 – – – – – – 3 3 – –

Mr R J Pietsch 
(retired 3 1  
December 
20 1 4) 5 5 – – – – 2 2 – – – –

A meetings attended during the financial year .

H meetings held during the year while the director held office which the director was eligible to attend.

 1  Disbanded on 3 1  December 20 1 4

2 Formed on  1  January 20 1 5

Directors’  
Report continued
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KEY TO ABBREVIATIONS
CGU Cash Generating Unit

Deed Deed of Cross Guarantee

EBIT Earnings Before Income Tax

EBITDA  Earnings Before Income 

Tax, Depreciation and 

Amortisation

IBNR Incurred But Not Reported

IBNER  Incurred But Not Enough 

Reported

ICAAP  Internal Capital Adequacy 

Assessment Process

LAT Liability Adequacy Test

PCA Prescribed Capital Amount

PML Probable Maximum Loss

RMS Risk Management Strategy

ReMS  Reinsurance Management 

Strategy
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss  
and Other Comprehensive Income  
for the year ended 30 June 20 1 5

    RACQ Group

  Note
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Revenue

Insurance premium revenue 2. 1 704,207 693,788

Membership subscription and entrance fee revenue  1 34,342  1 3 1 ,208

Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue 2. 1  1 62,538 66,535

Investment income 3. 1 57,895 56,0 1 6

Member services revenue 32, 1 57 30, 1 78

Other income  1 9,205  1 6,549

Total revenue  1 , 1  1 0,344 994,274

Expenses

Insurance claims expense 2. 1 (573, 1 59) (437,48 1 )

Employee benefits expense 4.4. 1 ( 1 35,62 1 ) ( 1 24,999)

Outwards reinsurance premium expense 2. 1 (76,548) (77,0 1 3)

Payments to contractors for roadside assistance and provision of  
other member services (5 1 ,929) (5 1 ,472)

Communication and information technology expenses (4 1 , 1 63) (27,254)

Other underwriting and acquisition costs (56, 1 46) (66,528)

Depreciation and amortisation expense (5 1 , 1 59) (50,865)

Property and related costs ( 1 2, 1 97) (5,476)

Other expenses (42,358) (35,683)

Total expenses ( 1 ,040,280) (876,77 1 )

Share of profit/(loss) of equity-accounted investments in Associates 5.2 (60) –

Surplus before income tax 70,004  1  1 7,503

Income tax expense 4.7. 1 ( 1 9,779) (27,327)

Surplus for the year 50,225 90, 1 76

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Defined benefit plan actuarial gains  1 , 1 79 6 1 9

Income tax expense 4.7. 1 (354) ( 1 86)

Total items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 825 433

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Net change in fair value of financial assets held as available-for-sale ( 1 95) 3,088

Net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets sold  
reclassified to profit or loss 550 38 1 

Income tax expense 4.7. 1 ( 1 07) ( 1 ,04 1 )

Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 248 2,428

Total other comprehensive income for the year , net of income tax  1 ,073 2,86 1 

Total comprehensive income for the year 5 1 ,298 93,037

The Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income is to be read in conjunction with the  
Notes to the Financial Statements set out on pages 35 to 74. 
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 
as at 30 June 20 1 5

    RACQ Group

  Note
20 1 5 

$’000

20 1 4
(Restated*)

$’000

Assets  

Cash and cash equivalents 55,3 1  1 47,232

Trade and other receivables 3.4.2  1 59,606  1 53,99 1 

Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable 2.4  1 35,263 85,404

Investment securities 3.2 435, 1 93 434,630

Deferred acquisition costs 2.5 37,35 1 33,756

Other current assets 9,575 7,387

Current tax receivable  1 0,06 1 –

Total current assets 842,360 762,400

 

Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable 2.4 72,0 1 7 84,554

Investment securities 3.2  1 ,028,685  1 ,039,860

Investment property 4. 1 7,398 7,552

Property , plant and equipment 4.2  1 47,089 76,737

Intangible assets 4.3 347, 1 97 35 1 ,83 1 

Deferred tax assets 4.7 24, 1  1 8 20,607

Other non-current assets 8,280  1  1 ,447

Equity-accounted investment in associates 5.2 94 1  1 

Total non-current assets  1 ,635,725  1 ,592,589

Total assets 2,478,085 2,354,989

 

Liabilities

Trade and other payables 3.4.3 64,086 38,800

Unearned revenue 4.6 4 1  1 ,7 1 5 4 1 0,035

Outstanding claims liability 2.3 327,436 252,788

Current tax payable –  1 4,664

Employee benefits 4.4.2 26,29 1 23,774

Total current liabilities 829,528 740,06 1 

 

Outstanding claims liability 2.3 522,663 540,666

Employee benefits 4.4.2 4,470 4, 1 46

Other non-current liabilities 3.4.3  1 0 –

Total non-current liabilities 527, 1 43 544,8 1 2

 

Total liabilities  1 ,356,67 1  1 ,284,873

 

Net assets  1 , 1 2 1 ,4 1 4  1 ,070, 1  1 6

 

Accumulated funds

Reserves  1 0,345  1 0,097

Retained surplus  1 , 1  1  1 ,069  1 ,060,0 1 9

Total accumulated funds   1 , 1 2 1 ,4 1 4  1 ,070, 1  1 6

* Refer to Note  1  for details of restatement.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet is to be read in conjunction with the Notes to the Financial Statements set out on pages 35 to 74.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 30 June 20 1 5

20 1 5 

Investment 
revaluation 

reserve
$’000

Retained 
surplus

$’000

Total 
accumulated 

funds
$’000

Balance at beginning of year  1 0,097  1 ,060,0 1 9  1 ,070, 1  1 6

Surplus for the year – 50,225 50,225

Total other comprehensive income for the year 248 825  1 ,073

Total comprehensive income for the year 248 5 1 ,050 5 1 ,298

 

Balance at end of year  1 0,345  1 , 1  1  1 ,069  1 , 1 2 1 ,4 1 4

20 1 4

Investment 
revaluation 

reserve
$’000

Retained 
surplus

$’000

Total 
accumulated 

funds
$’000

Balance at beginning of year 7,669 969,4 1 0 977,079

Surplus for the year – 90, 1 76 90, 1 76

Total other comprehensive income for the year 2,428 433 2,86 1 

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,428 90,609 93,037

  

Balance at end of year  1 0,097  1 ,060,0 1 9  1 ,070, 1  1 6

The Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity is to be read in conjunction with the Notes to the Financial Statements set out 
on pages 35 to 74.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows  
for the year ended 30 June 20 1 5

    RACQ Group

  Note
20 1 5 

$’000

20 1 4
(Restated*)

$’000

Cash flows from operating activities  

Insurance premiums received 780,39 1 766,7 1 2

Subscriptions and entrance fees received  1 35,629  1 47, 1  1 6

Reinsurance and other recoveries received  1 38,47 1 96,602

Insurance claims paid (579, 1 66) (48 1 ,797)

Outwards reinsurance premiums paid (74,769) (77,399)

Other cash receipts in the course of operations 44,682 46,239

Other cash payments in the course of operations (344,403) (356,97 1 )

Income taxes paid (48,370) (25,500)

 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 5. 1 52,465  1  1 5,002

 

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 57,487 63,64 1 

Dividends received 2,377  1 ,780

Rental income received 4,077  1 ,397

Payments for investments ( 1 ,279,066) ( 1 ,96 1 ,722)

Proceeds from sale of investments  1 ,288,506  1 ,787,555

Payments for intangible assets (36, 1 24) (9,858)

Payments for property , plant and equipment (82,283) (8,759)

Payments for investments in Associates ( 1 ,00 1 ) –

Proceeds from sale of property , plant and equipment  1 ,64 1 538

 

Net cash flows from investing activities (44,386) ( 1 25,428)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 8,079 ( 1 0,426)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 47,232 57,658

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 55,3 1  1 47,232

* Refer to Note  1  for details of restatement.

The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows is to be read in conjunction with the Notes to the Financial Statements set out on 
pages 35 to 74.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 20 1 5

 1  Basis of preparation

Reporting entity

The Royal Automobile Club of Queensland Limited (the Company) is a company limited by guarantee domiciled in Australia.  

The Company’s registered office is 2649 Logan Road , Eight Mile Plains, Queensland , 4 1  1 3. The consolidated financial statements 

of the Company as at and for the year ended 30 June 20 1 5 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the 

‘Group’). The Company is a not-for-profit entity .

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 September 20 1 5.

Significant accounting policies have been included in the relevant note to which the policies relate. The significant accounting 

policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements, and have been 

consistently applied by the consolidated entities. Certain comparative amounts have been restated to conform to the current year’s 

presentation. This includes $20,934, 1 25 of highly liquid investments that have been reclassified from Current Investment Securities 

to Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Consolidated Balance Sheet and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows have been restated for 

this change in presentation. 

Statement of compliance
The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards 

adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 200 1 . The consolidated financial statements comply 

with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board .

Significant estimates, judgements and assumptions

In preparing these consolidated financial statements management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect 

the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may 

differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the 

circumstances. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected .

Information about areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most 

significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is provided in the following notes:

• Outstanding claims liability (Note 2.3);

• Liability adequacy test (Note 2.6);

• Reinsurance and other recoveries (Note 2.4); and

• Goodwill impairment (Note 4.3.1 ).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and have been prepared on the historical cost basis 

except for the following assets that are measured at fair value:

• Available-for-sale financial assets;

• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; and

• Assets backing general insurance liabilities.

The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/ 1 00 dated  1 0 July  1 998 and in accordance with that Class Order ,  

amounts in the consolidated financial report have been rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise stated .
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 20 1 5

 1  Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company . The Group controls an entity when it is exposed , or has rights to, variable 

returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity . The financial 

statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the 

date that control ceases. 

(ii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated 

in preparing the consolidated financial statements. 

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

AASB 9 Financial Instruments is effective for annual periods beginning on or after  1  January 20 1 8, with early adoption permitted ,  

and introduces changes in the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities. The standard becomes mandatory 

for the Group’s 30 June 20 1 9 financial statements. The potential impact of this standard on the Group has not yet been determined . 

The RACQ Group does not intend to early adopt this standard .

AASB  1 5 Revenue from Contracts with Customers is effective for annual periods beginning on or after  1  January 20 1 8, with early  

adoption permitted . It establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether , how much, and when revenue is recognised . 

It replaces existing revenue guidance, including AASB  1  1 8 Revenue. The standard becomes mandatory for the Group’s 30 June 20 1 9 

financial statements. The potential impact of this standard on the Group has not yet been determined . The Group does not intend to 

early adopt this standard . 
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2 Insurance activities

2. 1  Insurance result 

The following table presents details of the underwriting result in respect of the insurance activities included in the  

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income:

    RACQ Group

  Note
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Insurance premium revenue 704,207 693,788

Outwards reinsurance premium expense (76,548) (77,0 1 3)

Net premium revenue 627,659 6 1 6,775

 

Claims expense 2.2 (573, 1 59) (437,48 1 )

Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue 2.2  1 62,538 66,535

Net claims incurred 2.2 (4 1 0,62 1 ) (370,946)

 

Acquisition costs (72,90 1 ) (69,879)

Other underwriting expenses ( 1 06,549) (95,836)

Underwriting expenses ( 1 79,450) ( 1 65,7 1 5)

 

Underwriting result 37,588 80, 1  1 4

Accounting policies

(i) Insurance premium revenue

Premium revenue includes amounts charged to policyholders, including applicable levies and charges such as fire service levies,  

but excludes stamp duty and GST collected on behalf of third parties. Premiums are recognised as revenue from the date of 

attachment over the period of the insurance policy , which is usually one year . 

Premium on unclosed business is brought to account based on the pattern of processing renewals and new business. 

(ii) Outwards reinsurance premium expense

Premium ceded to reinsurers is recognised as an expense from the attachment date over the period of indemnity of the  

reinsurance contract. 

(iii) Claims expense

Claims expense represents claim payments adjusted for the movement in the outstanding claims liability . Claims represent the 

benefits paid or payable to the policyholder on the occurrence of an event giving rise to a loss or accident according to the terms  

of the policy . Claims expense is recognised as losses are incurred , which is usually the point in time when the event giving rise to  

the claim occurs.

(iv) Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue

Reinsurance and other recoveries are measured as the present value of the expected future receipts, calculated on the same basis 

as the outstanding claims liabilities. 

(v) Underwriting expenses

Underwriting expenses for the purpose of this note includes an allocation of communication and information technology expenses, 

personnel expenses, amortisation of intangible assets and other expenses that are related to acquisition and underwriting activities.
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2 Insurance activities (continued)

2.2 Net claims incurred

The following table presents the total net claims incurred , which comprises claims expense and revenue from reinsurance and  

other recoveries: 

20 1 5 20 1 4

RACQ Group
Current year

$’000
Prior years

$’000
Total

$’000
Current year

$’000
Prior years

$’000
Total

$’000

Gross claims expense

Gross claims incurred – 
undiscounted 684,4 1 9 ( 1 25,669) 558,750 545,966 ( 1 04,996) 440,970 

Discount movement (20,473) 34,882  1 4,409  (26,842)  23,353  (3,489)

663,946 (90,787) 573, 1 59  5 1 9, 1 24  (8 1 ,643) 437,48 1  

Reinsurance and other 
recoveries revenue

Reinsurance and other 
recoveries revenue – 
undiscounted ( 1 82,859) 25,095 ( 1 57,764) (85,248)   1 4,042 (7 1 ,206)

Discount movement 2,940 (7,7 1 4) (4,774)  5,748  ( 1 ,077)  4,67 1  

( 1 79,9 1 9)  1 7,38 1 ( 1 62,538)  (79,500)   1 2,965 (66,535)

Total net claims incurred 484,027 (73,406) 4 1 0,62 1  439,624  (68,678) 370,946 

The decrease in prior year net provisions is primarily due to the release of risk margins as claims were paid and valuation releases 

arising from favourable claims experience in CTP Insurance. 

2.3 Outstanding claims liability

The outstanding claims liability is measured as the central estimate of the present value of expected future payments relating to 
claims incurred at the reporting date, with an additional risk margin to allow for the inherent uncertainty in the central estimate. 
Further information is provided in 2.3.2.

The expected future payments include those in relation to claims reported but not yet paid , claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), 
claims incurred but not enough reported (IBNER), and the direct and indirect costs of settling those claims. The expected future 
payments are discounted to present value using a risk-free discount rate.
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2 Insurance activities (continued)

2.3 Outstanding claims liability (continued)

A breakdown of the total outstanding claims liability is as follows:

  RACQ Group

 
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Gross outstanding claims liability

Gross central estimate – undiscounted 707,62 1 664,242

Claims handling costs 4 1 ,356 39,678

 748,977 703,920

Discount to present value (33,87 1 ) (47,300)

Risk margin  1 34,993  1 36,834

Gross outstanding claims liability 850,099 793,454

 

Current 327,436 252,788

Non-current 522,663 540,666

Gross outstanding claims liability 850,099 793,454

% %

Risk margin 26. 1 27.3

Probability of sufficiency 92.5 92.5

A reconciliation of the movement in the discounted net outstanding claims liability is as follows:

  RACQ Group

 
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Net outstanding claims liability at the beginning of the year 623,496 600,499

Prior periods

Claim payments ( 1 46,406) ( 1 49,762)

Discount unwind  1 2,542  1 2,448

Margin release on prior periods (35, 1 44) (32,437)

Incurred claims due to changes in assumptions and experience (78,26 1 ) (70,620)

Current period

Net central estimate for current period 2 1 4,338 206,5 1 6

Net change in reinsurance on paid claims (366) 2,972

Risk margin on current period net outstanding claims 52,620 53,880

Net outstanding claims liability at the end of the year 642,8 1 9 623,496

Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable 207,280  1 69,958

Gross outstanding claims liability 850,099 793,454
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2 Insurance activities (continued)

2.3 Outstanding claims liability (continued)

2.3. 1  Claims development table

The following table shows the development of the estimated undiscounted outstanding claims liabilities relative to the  

ultimate expected claims for the  1 0 most recent accident years. Amounts are net of reinsurance and third party recoveries.  

Personal Insurance (Home, Motor and Pleasurecraft) claims are disclosed separately as there are no material claim developments 

that require disclosure because the majority of claims are settled within  1 2 months. 

Accident year
2006
$’000

2007
$’000

2008
$’000

2009
$’000

20 1 0
$’000

20 1  1 
$’000

20 1 2
$’000

20 1 3
$’000

20 1 4
$’000

20 1 5
$’000

Total
$’000

Estimate of net 
ultimate CTP 
claims cost:

At end of  
accident year 86,673 87,335  1 04,28 1  1 28, 1  1 5  1 4 1 ,527  1 42,357  1 5 1 ,096  1 55,58 1  1 69,902  1 55,377  1 55,377

One year later 7 1 ,784 89,4 1 2  1  1 8,697  1 25,969  1 25,074  1 28,0 1 2  1 26, 1 60  1 39,449  1 47,050 –  1 47,050

Two years later 73,043 95,363  1  1 2,780  1  1 3,055  1 08,598  1  1 0,494  1 09, 1 53  1  1 8,280 – –  1  1 8,280

Three years later 70,667 87,769  1 0 1 ,825  1  1 4,349  1 03, 1 34 99,573  1 02,062 – – –  1 02,062

Four years later 67,9 1 9 80,064 97,086  1 08,279 93,537 9 1 ,4 1 2 – – – – 9 1 ,4 1 2

Five years later 65,235 82,096 94,507  1 02,649 96, 1 95 – – – – – 96, 1 95

Six years later 67,524 83,549 90, 1 38  1 02,354 – – – – – –  1 02,354

Seven years later 64,925 88,0 1 5 89,086 – – – – – – – 89,086

Eight years later 64,847 85,846 – – – – – – – – 85,846

Nine years later 64,532 – – – – – – – – – 64,532

Current estimate 
of net ultimate 
claims cost 64,532 85,846 89,086  1 02,354 96, 1 95 9 1 ,4 1 2  1 02,062  1  1 8,280  1 47,050  1 55,377  1 ,052, 1 94

Cumulative 
payments (62,829) (84,280) (85,537) (95,385) (76,89 1 ) (76,87 1 ) (65,479) (43,548) ( 1 8,04 1 ) (2,685) (6 1  1 ,547)

Net 
outstanding 
claims – 
undiscounted  1 ,703  1 ,566 3,549 6,969  1 9,304  1 4,54 1 36,583 74,732  1 29,009  1 52,692 440,647

Discount to 
present value (23,633)

Claims handling 
expenses 32,706

2005 and prior 4,360

Outstanding 
claims – CTP 454,080

Outstanding 
claims – 
Personal 
Insurance 53,746

Risk margin  1 34,993

Total net 
outstanding 
claims 642,8 1 9
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2 Insurance activities (continued)

2.3 Outstanding claims liability (continued)

2.3.2 Actuarial assumptions and methods

The estimation of the outstanding claims liabilities is based on multiple actuarial models that analyse experience, trends and 

other factors utilising the Group’s specific data, relevant industry data and general economic data. The selection of the appropriate 

model takes into account the characteristics of a claim type and class of business and the extent of the development of each past 

accident period . 

The models use statistical analyses of historical experience. Generally it is assumed that the development pattern of current 

claims will be consistent with past experience. Where historical experience is not sufficient , a combination of actual and industry 

experience is utilised to calculate the ultimate claims cost. An allowance is made, including relevant industry issues faced by the 

Group, for changes or uncertainties in the underlying assumptions derived from historical data, which might cause the cost of 

unsettled claims to increase or reduce compared with the cost of previously settled claims. 

The Group takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding its claims exposures. However , given 

the uncertainty in estimating claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability 

established . There is a significant degree of uncertainty in the estimation of claims IBNR and claims IBNER. Personal Insurance claims 

are generally reported within a short timeframe following the claim event and therefore claims cost estimates are more certain. 

CTP Insurance claims display increased complexity and longer settlement periods and are generally subject to a greater degree of 

uncertainty , with claims often not being adequately reported until many years after the events giving rise to the claims have happened . 

Actuarial assumptions

The actuarial assumptions used in determining the outstanding claims liability are:

20 1 5 20 1 4

Personal 
Insurance

CTP 
Insurance

Personal 
Insurance

CTP 
Insurance

Discount rate 2. 1 % 2.3% 2.7% 3.0%

Economic inflation rate – 3.5% – 4.0%

Superimposed inflation rate – 3.5% – 3.5%

Claims handling expense ratio 4.8% 6.8% 5. 1 % 6.8%

Risk margin  1 7.6% 27.3%  1 9.8% 28.0%

Discount rate

Discount rates are derived from market yields on Commonwealth Government securities at the reporting date.

Inflation and superimposed inflation rate

Economic inflation is based on economic indicators such as growth in average weekly earnings. Superimposed inflation reflects  
the tendency of claims costs to increase above the rate of economic inflation, due to economic, social and political forces.  
Inflation assumptions reflect past experience and future expectations. 

No explicit allowance for economic or superimposed inflation has been made in the valuation of Personal Insurance claims. 
Allowances for future inflation are implicit in the selected claims cost development patterns.

Claims handling expense ratio

The future claims handling expense ratio is calculated with reference to past experience of claim handling costs as a percentage  
of past payments. 
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2 Insurance activities (continued)

2.3 Outstanding claims liability (continued)

2.3.2 Actuarial assumptions (continued)

Risk margin

The overall risk margin is determined by the Board after analysis of the relative uncertainty of the outstanding claims estimate  
for each class of business. Uncertainties surrounding the outstanding claims liability estimation process include those relating  
to the robustness of the various valuation models and the underlying assumptions, reliability and volume of data available,  
past claims experience, characteristics of the classes of business written, and industry and market conditions. 

The assumptions regarding uncertainty for each class of business were applied to the net central estimates, and the results  
are aggregated , allowing for diversification in order to arrive at an overall provision that is intended to have a probability of 
sufficiency of around 90% (20 1 4: 90%).

Sensitivity analysis 

The Group conducts sensitivity analyses to quantify the exposure to the risk of changes in the key actuarial assumptions.  
A sensitivity analysis is conducted on each variable while holding all other variables constant. 

The following table summarises the sensitivity of the surplus/(loss) after tax. A change in each variable will have no impact  
on equity reserves.

Movement in 
Variable

Financial Impact 
on Surplus/(Loss) 

after tax

Impact of changes in key variables 20 1 5 20 1 4
20 1 5

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Assumption

Discount rate + 1  % + 1  % 9,338 9,5 1 8

- 1  % - 1  % (9,644) (9,938)

Inflation rate + 1  % + 1  % (7,855) (8,309)

- 1  % - 1  % 7,835 8,567

Claims handling expense rate + 1  % + 1  % (5,279) (5,255)

- 1  % - 1  % 5,279 5,255

Risk margin + 1  % + 1  % (6,097) (4,685)

- 1  % - 1  % 5,69 1 4, 1 77
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2 Insurance activities (continued)

2.4 Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable

Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable are measured as the present value of expected future receipts, calculated on the 
same basis as the provision for outstanding claims. These calculations are based on past recovery experience or relevant industry 
benchmarks and include adjustments to these assumptions where appropriate. The recoverability of these assets is assessed on  
a periodic basis, taking into consideration factors such as counterparty credit risk . 

A breakdown of reinsurance and other recoveries receivable is as follows:

  RACQ Group

 
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Reinsurance recoveries  

Expected undiscounted outstanding reinsurance recoveries  

On paid claims 8,765 8,425

On outstanding claims  1 03,975 74,98 1 

  1  1 2,740 83,406

Discount to present value (4,898) (7,468)

  1 07,842 75,938

Other recoveries

Expected undiscounted outstanding other recoveries

On paid claims 55,678 58,74 1 

On outstanding claims 47,890 40,709

  1 03,568 99,450

Discount to present value (4, 1 30) (5,430)

 99,438 94,020

Total reinsurance and other recoveries receivable 207,280  1 69,958

Current  1 35,263 85,404

Non-current 72,0 1 7 84,554

 207,280  1 69,958
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2 Insurance activities (continued)

2.5 Deferred acquisition costs

Acquisition costs incurred in obtaining and recording general insurance contracts are deferred and recognised as assets when 

they can be reliably measured and where it is probable that they will give rise to premium revenue in subsequent reporting periods. 

Deferred acquisition costs are amortised systematically in accordance with the expected pattern of the incidence of risk under 

the general insurance contracts to which they relate. This pattern of amortisation corresponds to the earning pattern of the 

corresponding premium revenue.

Deferred acquisition costs are recognised as assets to the extent that the related unearned premiums exceed the sum of  

the deferred acquisition cost and the present value of expected future claims, including an appropriate risk margin. 

Refer Note 2.6 Liability Adequacy Test. 

The following is a reconciliation of the deferred acquisition costs:

  RACQ Group

 
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Deferred acquisition costs at beginning of the year 33,757 33,489

Acquisition costs incurred in the period 76,495 70, 1 46

Amortisation expense (72,90 1 ) (69,879)

Deferred acquisition costs at end of the financial year 37,35 1 33,756

2.6 Liability Adequacy Test

At each reporting date the Group assesses whether the net unearned premium liability less any deferred acquisition costs is 

sufficient to cover expected future cash flows relating to future claims against current general insurance contracts. This assessment 

is referred to as the Liability Adequacy Test (LAT) and is performed separately for each portfolio of contracts subject to broadly similar 

risks and managed together as a single portfolio. The Group has one portfolio of contracts being personal lines, which incorporates 

Personal Insurance and CTP Insurance.

If a LAT deficiency occurs, it is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The deficiency is recognised first by writing down any 

deferred acquisition costs, with any excess being recorded in the Balance Sheet as an unexpired risk liability .

Future claim costs are calculated as the present value of the expected future cash flows relating to future claims and includes a  

risk margin to reflect the inherent uncertainty in the central estimate, as follows:

  RACQ Group

 
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Central estimate of present value of expected future cash flows arising from future claims 3 1  1 ,602 287,744

Present value of expected future cash inflows arising from reinsurance recoveries on future claims (3 1 ,204)  ( 1 4,205)

Risk margin 20,622 20,840

Expected present value of future cash flow for future claims including risk margin 30 1 ,020 294,379

The risk margin adopted in 20 1 5 is 7.4% (20 1 4: 7.6%). The risk margin applied in the calculation of the present value of expected 

future cash flows arising from future claims is intended to achieve a 75% probability of sufficiency . This differs from the 92.5% 

probability of sufficiency adopted in determining the outstanding claims liability . The 75% level of sufficiency is considered 

appropriate given the purpose and nature of the test , which is to test the sufficiency of the net premium liabilities and to highlight 

deficiencies in product pricing. The process for determining the risk margin is outlined in Note 2.3.2 Actuarial assumptions and 

methods.

As at 30 June 20 1  5 and 30 June 20 1  4, the LAT resulted in a surplus. 
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2 Insurance activities (continued)

2.7 Insurance risk management

2.7. 1  Risk management objectives and policies for mitigating insurance risk

In accordance with Prudential Standard CPS 220 Risk Management issued by the Australian Prudential Regulatory Authority (APRA), 

the Board of Directors of Club Insurance Holdings Pty Ltd and RACQ Insurance Limited , in conjunction with responsible management , 

have developed , implemented and maintained a Risk Management Strategy (RMS). The aim of the RMS is to ensure that the Group 

has in place prudent risk management systems to effectively identify , evaluate, mitigate and monitor all key risks that the Group 

faces through its insurance operations. The respective boards of directors are responsible for reviewing their RMS annually . 

The key components of the RMSs that aim to mitigate insurance risk include:

• Underwriting operations are managed in accordance with underwriting rules and guidelines, with regular quality assessment 

and monitoring of operations. Each individual policyholder pays a premium that is based on their relative risk in comparison to 

other policyholders; and

• Claims operations are managed in accordance with claims handling rules and guidelines, with regular quality assessment and 

monitoring of operations. These include, among other factors, delegations of authority for acceptance and approval of claims, 

review processes for claim payments and processes for accurate initial and ongoing claims provisioning.

In addition to the RMS, the Group has developed , implemented and maintained a Reinsurance Management Strategy (ReMS) in 

accordance with GPS 230 Reinsurance Management issued by APRA. The Group has in place comprehensive reinsurance arrangements 

to increase the capacity to underwrite new insurance business and , at the same time, reduce the volatility of operating performance. 

The ReMS documents the reinsurance processes and arrangements that the Group has in place to provide the necessary security and 

liquidity to meet its obligations to policyholders and , hence, provide protection to the assets of the Group.

In respect of natural peril risk , an annual probabilistic modelling process is undertaken to guide the setting of the upper limit of  

the catastrophe reinsurance program. This modelling calculates a Probable Maximum Loss (PML) at various return periods.  

The Board of Directors of RACQ Insurance Limited considers the outputs of the modelling on an annual basis.

2.7.2 Terms and conditions of insurance contracts

The Group has developed and maintains standard insurance contracts for all insurance policies. The terms and conditions of these 

insurance contracts are based upon legislative requirements as stipulated within the Insurance Contracts Act  1 984. The Group utilises 

these standard contracts for all insurance policies. No special terms that have a material impact upon the consolidated financial 

statements are entered into with any policyholder .

2.7.3 Concentration of insurance risk

The Group aims to reduce its exposure to concentration of insurance risk by maintaining a balanced diversified portfolio across both 

short tail (Personal Insurance) and long tail (Compulsory Third Party) classes of business. Concentration within the classes is also 

monitored to ensure excessive levels of exposure to certain perils and/or geographical regions are within desired levels.

All risks are aggregated via postcode and then modelled with commercial catastrophe modelling tools to evaluate the single largest risk , 

or PML. The largest risk faced in respect of concentration is the risk of natural catastrophes.
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3 Financial instruments and capital management

3. 1  Investment income

Investment income is comprised of interest income on funds invested (including available-for-sale financial assets), dividend income, 
realised gains/losses on the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets and changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss. Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method . Dividends and distribution income are 
recognised when the right to receive income is established . 

Investment income comprises the following:

  RACQ Group

 
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Interest income  

Available for sale financial assets  1 2, 1 65  1  1 ,208

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 45,322 52,433

Net loss on disposal of available-for sale financial assets transferred from equity (550) (38 1 )

Net change in fair value of financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 

Unrealised gains 2,327 (3,5 1 2)

Realised losses (3,746) (5,5 1 2)

Dividend income 2,377  1 ,780

Total investment income 57,895 56,0 1 6

3.2 Investment securities

Investment securities are classified as follows:

  RACQ Group

 
20 1 5 

$’000

20 1 4
(Restated*)

$’000

Current  

Available for sale  

Debt securities  1 3,497 6,086

Deposits and bills 76,308  1  1 6,8 1  1 

 

Designated at fair value through profit or loss

Debt securities 20 1 , 1 58  1 63, 1 97

Deposits and bills  1 44,230  1 48,536

Total current investment securities 435, 1 93 434,630

 

Non-current

Available for sale

Equity securities 27,790 23,0 1 7

Debt securities  1 23,33 1  1 35, 1 82

Deposits and bills 62,0 1 8 47,697

 

Designated at fair value through profit or loss

Debt securities 807,046 833,964

Deposits and bills 8,500 –

Total non-current investment securities  1 ,028,685  1 ,039,860

* Refer to Note  1  for details of restatement.

For accounting policies for investments, refer to Note 3.6. 
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3 Financial instruments and capital management (continued)

3.3 Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial assets carried at fair value, by valuation method . 

The different levels have been defined as follows: 

• Level  1 : quoted closing prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

• Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level  1  that are observable for the asset or liability , either directly  

 (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices);

• Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

RACQ Group
Level  1 
$’000

Level 2
$’000

Level 3
$’000

Total
$’000

20 1 5  

Equities 27,790 – – 27,790

Debt securities –  1 , 1 45,032 –  1 , 1 45,032

Deposits and bills 29 1 ,056 – – 29 1 ,056

3 1 8,846  1 , 1 45,032 –  1 ,463,878

20 1 4 (Restated*)  

Equities 23,0 1 7 – – 23,0 1 7

Debt securities –  1 , 1 38,429 –  1 , 1 38,429

Deposits and bills 3 1 3,044 – – 3 1 3,044

336,06 1  1 , 1 38,429 –  1 ,474,490

* Refer to Note  1  for details of restatement. 

There were no transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy during the year ended 30 June 20 1 5 (20 1 4: nil). 

3.3. 1  Valuation approach

For securities traded in an active market , fair value is determined by reference to quoted bid price or broker quotes for similar 

instruments at the reporting date. For securities traded in a market that is not active, valuation techniques are used based on market 

observable inputs. 

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are equal to the carrying amounts shown in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.  

The carrying amounts of the following financial assets and financial liabilities are a reasonable approximation of their fair value as 

they are short term in nature:

• Cash and cash equivalents;

•  Trade and other receivables; and

• Trade and other payables.
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3 Financial instruments and capital management (continued)

3.4 Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including credit risk , market risk and liquidity risk . This note presents 

information about the Group’s financial risks and the objectives, policies and processes for managing these risks.

3.4. 1  Overview

The Boards of Directors, including the board for each of the regulated entities, Club Insurance Holdings Pty Limited and  

RACQ Insurance Limited , have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework .  

Each board has established Risk and Compliance Committees that assist their respective boards in developing and monitoring  

risk management policies. These committees report regularly to their boards on their activities.

The Group adopts an enterprise risk management approach, which incorporates the concept of the ‘three lines of defence’.  

The ‘three lines of defence’ relate to function and not people. It is recognised that in a practical environment the Group requires its 

people resources to be employed with a core function within a specific line-of-defence, however , from time-to-time people will be 

fulfilling functional outcomes in other lines-of-defence. The three lines are:

•  1 st line:  Management of risks in accordance with the risk management framework;

• 2nd line:  Governance of risk management framework and non-executive challenge to risk management decisions; and

• 3rd line:  Audit of risk management and framework governance, including non-executive challenge to risk management decisions.

Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and 

controls, and to monitor risk and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect 

changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. 

3.4.2 Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 

obligations. Credit risk arises principally from the Group’s investment in interest-bearing securities, receivables under reinsurance 

contracts and other insurance-related recoveries from third parties and trade and other receivables. The Group mitigates credit risk by 

ensuring the Group invests in secure assets, contracts with financially sound reinsurers, and monitors all funds owed on a timely basis. 

Exposure to credit risk is monitored on a regular basis. 

(i) Investment in interest-bearing securities

Interest-bearing securities are held in accordance with the investment guidelines approved by the Boards of Directors.  

The investment guidelines detail the investment strategies, asset selection, asset allocation, credit worthiness and maximum 

exposures to single counterparties. 

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by only investing in interest-bearing securities that comply with board-approved 

credit rating exposure limits that are reviewed on a regular basis. Given these exposure limits, management does not expect any 

counterparty to fail to meet its obligations. 

(ii) Reinsurance and other recoveries

Credit risk with respect to reinsurance programs is mitigated by the placement of cover with a number of reinsurers with high credit 

ratings. Reinsurance arrangements and recoveries are regularly monitored and managed by a Senior Executive Committee of RACQ 

Insurance and by specialised reinsurance brokers operating within the international reinsurance market. The credit risk to reinsurers is 

managed through the Group having a pre-determined policy on the appropriate credit rating a reinsurer must have to participate in the 

reinsurance program. Reinsurance is placed with companies with Standard & Poor’s credit ratings of ‘A minus’ or better . Reinsurance 

contracts include a provision that protects the Group in the event of a downgrade below ‘A minus’, whereby that individual reinsurer 

can be replaced .

The credit risk from other insurance-related recoveries with third parties arises from the issuing of recovery action against individual 

counterparties. Following the identification of a recovery , the debt is monitored and pursued to ensure receipt or to assess 

recoverability where difficulties arise. 
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3 Financial instruments and capital management (continued)

3.4 Financial risk management (continued)

3.4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(iii) Trade and other receivables

The majority of trade and other receivables relate to insurance policies that are paid on a monthly instalment basis. The late payment 

of amounts due under such arrangements allows for the cancellation of the related insurance contract , eliminating the credit risk for 

the unpaid amounts. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of the financial assets as summarised in the  

tables below. The Group does not hold any significant collateral as security over its receivables and there are no significant 

concentrations of credit risk within the Group. 

The following table provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the Group’s financial and insurance assets classified 

according to Standard & Poor’s credit ratings:

AAA
$’000

AA+ to AA-
$’000

A+ to A-
$’000

Below A-
$’000 

Not rated
$’000

Total
$’000

20 1 5  

Cash and cash equivalents 2 1 ,467 33,783 – – 6 1 55,3 1  1 

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables – – – – 6,393 6,393

Insurance premiums receivable – – – –  1 48,733  1 48,733

Other receivables – – – – 4,480 4,480

Total trade and other receivables – – – –  1 59,606  1 59,606

Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable 48,098 5 1 ,990 55,85 1 – 5 1 ,34 1 207,280

Debt securities 466,853 429, 1 36 24 1 ,66 1 7,092 290  1 , 1 45,032

Deposits and bills  1 03,974  1 07,986 74,969 – 4, 1 27 29 1 ,056

640,392 622,895 372,48 1 7,092 2 1 5,425  1 ,858,286

AAA
$’000

AA+ to AA-
$’000

A+ to A-
$’000

Below A-
$’000 

Not rated
$’000

Total
$’000

20 1 4 (Restated*)  

Cash and cash equivalents  1 9,883 27,285 – – 64 47,232

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables – – – – 259 259

Insurance premiums receivable – – – –  1 49,463  1 49,463

Other receivables – – – – 4,269 4,269

Total trade and other receivables – – – –  1 53,99 1  1 53,99 1 

Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable 45,353 39,749 36, 1 89 – 48,667  1 69,958

Debt securities 533,970 398,596 204,839  1 ,024 –  1 , 1 38,429

Deposits and bills  1 04,55 1  1 20,895 83,54 1 – 4,057 3 1 3,044

 703,757 586,525 324,569  1 ,024 206,779  1 ,822,654

* Refer to Note  1  for details of restatement.

At 30 June 20 1 5, no receivables of the Group were past due or impaired (20 1 4: nil). The amount of the impairment provision  

was nil (20 1 4: nil). 
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3 Financial instruments and capital management (continued)

3.4 Financial risk management (continued)

3.4.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group maintains a 

prudent approach to managing liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquid assets on a daily basis  

to meet its payment obligations when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses. 

The assets backing insurance liabilities consist of government securities and other quality securities that can generally be  

readily sold or exchanged for cash. These assets are managed so as to broadly match the maturity profile of the expected  

pattern of insurance claims payments. In the event of a major catastrophe, cash access may also be available under the terms  

of reinsurance arrangements.

To ensure the Group has sufficient funds to meet daily obligations, minimum levels of cash are held within the trading bank accounts. 

These accounts are reviewed daily , in conjunction with obligations to ensure sufficient funds are maintained . 

The following table represents the contractual maturities of financial liabilities and the net discounted outstanding claims liability:

 

Less than  
 1  year
$’000

 1 -3 years
$’000

3-5 years
$’000

More than  
5 years

$’000
Total

$’000

20 1 5  

Outstanding claims liability 327,436 3 1 4,726  1 3 1 ,958 75,979 850,099

Trade and other payables

Trade payables 42,694 – – – 42,694

Other payables and accruals 2 1 ,392 – – – 2 1 ,392

Total trade and other payables 64,086 – – – 64,086

Other non-current liabilities – –  1 0 –  1 0

Unearned revenue 4 1  1 ,7 1 5 – – – 4 1  1 ,7 1 5

 803,237 3 1 4,726  1 3 1 ,968 75,979  1 ,325,9 1 0

 

Less than  
 1  year
$’000

 1 -3 years
$’000

3-5 years
$’000

More than  
5 years

$’000
Total

$’000

20 1 4  

Outstanding claims liability 252,788 3 1 6,030  1 36,238 88,398 793,454

Trade and other payables

Trade payables 29,830 – – – 29,830

Other payables and accruals 8,970 – – – 8,970

Total trade and other payables 38,800 – – – 38,800

Unearned revenue 4 1 0,035 – – – 4 1 0,035

 70 1 ,623 3 1 6,030  1 36,238 88,398  1 ,242,289
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3 Financial instruments and capital management (continued)

3.4 Financial risk management (continued)

3.4.4 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, credit spreads and equity prices, will affect the Group’s 
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

The Group, through its Group Investment Committee, reviews and approves the Investment Management Strategies and Investment 
Mandates at least annually . The performance of all investment managers (both external and internal), including compliance with 
investment guidelines stipulated within the investment strategies and mandates, is reviewed on a regular basis by management , 
the Group Investment Committee and the Boards of Directors.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Group is impacted by significant changes in interest rates and mainly arises from investments 
in interest-bearing securities and the valuation of insurance liabilities. Movements in interest rates should have minimal impact on 
the insurance profit due to the Group’s policy of investing in assets backing insurance liabilities principally in fixed interest securities 
broadly matched to the expected payment pattern of the insurance liabilities. Movements in investment income on assets backing 
insurance liabilities broadly offset the impact of movements in discount rates on the insurance liabilities. 

Exposure to interest rate risk is managed by asset and liability matching, using measures such as duration and credit. To mitigate 
this risk , the investments in interest-bearing securities are held at an average duration that broadly matches the average duration 
of corresponding outstanding claims liabilities. The investment manager provides a comparison of assets and liabilities across 
an annual time series. This is monitored on a monthly basis to ensure that the risk is within the Group’s risk appetite. Interest rate 
risk is also managed through the controlled use of interest rate derivative instruments, including interest rate swaps and futures. 
The external investment manager is required to regularly report on compliance with the use of derivatives in accordance with the 
relevant investment mandate.

At 30 June 20 1 5, if interest rates had changed by +/-  1 % (20 1 4: +/-  1 %) from the year-end rates, with all other variables held 

constant , surplus for the year would have been $ 1 4,776,000 higher/lower (20 1 4: $ 1 3,227,000 higher/lower) and equity reserves 

would have been $5,672,000 higher/lower (20 1 4: $5,287,000 higher/lower). 

(ii) Price risk 

Price risk is the risk of loss in current and future earnings from adverse moves in equity prices and arises from the RACQ Group’s 
investment in available-for-sale equity securities. Available for sale financial assets are exposed to price risk as the share price 

fluctuates. Equity risk is managed by incorporating a diverse holding of blue-chip equities.  1 00% (20 1 4:  1 00%) of the market value  
of the equity securities portfolio comprises stock that forms part of the Standard & Poors ASX 200 Index. 

At 30 June 20 1 5, if a  1 % increase/decrease was applied to the ASX 200 index and all other variables were held constant , equity 

reserves would have increased/decreased by $277,902 (20 1 4: $230, 1 72). 

3.5 Capital Management

The Group’s capital management objective is to maintain sufficient capital to protect the interests of all members and regulators 
while also efficiently deploying capital and managing risk . As a company limited by guarantee, The Royal Automobile Club of 
Queensland Limited has no shareholders or owners. All surpluses are therefore used to develop the Group’s businesses for the 
benefit of the members. 

The board of directors’ policy is to hold the level of capital that is judged to be prudent and sustainable within the bounds of the 
Group’s risk appetite, the restrictions imposed by the Group’s legal structure and the fulfilment of the Group’s purpose.  

On this basis, the RACQ Group aims to achieve a balance between:

• Maintaining sufficient capital to protect the Group from material and unexpected financial shocks;

• Ensuring that there is sufficient provisioning for future capital requirements; and

• Avoiding the holding of excessive capital, which could otherwise be put to the benefit of members.

Capital consists of total accumulated funds as shown on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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3 Financial instruments and capital management (continued)

3.5 Capital Management (continued)

Regulatory capital 

All insurers that conduct general insurance business in Australia are regulated by APRA and are required to maintain internal capital 
targets. The Insurance Group, comprising Club Insurance Holdings Pty Ltd and RACQ Insurance Limited , has retained its capital target 

of 2.0 times the Prescribed Capital Amount (PCA), a trading range of between  1 .75 and 2. 1 5 times the PCA, and a capital injection 

trigger point of  1 .75 times the PCA, in accordance with its Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP). 

The Insurance Group uses the standardised framework for calculating the PCA in accordance with the relevant APRA prudential 
standards. The Insurance Group has satisfied all externally imposed capital requirements that it was subject to during both the 
current and prior financial year . 

The regulatory capital position of the Insurance Group is as follows: 

 
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Common Equity Tier  1  capital  

Paid-up ordinary shares 470,890 470,890

Retained earnings brought forward 88,620 98,584

Current year's earnings 38,254 65,035

Dividends declared or paid (35,000) (75,000)

Excess technical provisions (net of tax) 64,086 67, 1  1 6

 626,850 626,625

Less: Deductions 

Goodwill and other intangible assets 25 1 ,775 258,425

Deferred tax asset 5,689 2,8 1 2

Common Equity Tier  1  capital 369,386 365,388

 

Tier 2 capital

Subordinated debt 60,000 48,000

Total Tier 2 capital 60,000 48,000

 

APRA capital base 429,386 4 1 3,388

 

Prescribed capital amount (PCA)

Insurance risk charge  1 27,306  1 24,488

Insurance concentration risk charge 25,000 29,655

Asset risk charge 53,230 46,308

Asset concentration risk charge – –

Operational risk charge 25,562 24,394

Aggregation benefit (34,44 1 ) (30,864)

Prescribed capital amount (PCA)  1 96,657  1 93,98 1 

PCA multiple 2. 1 8 2. 1 3

The ICAAP ensures that all material risks to which the Insurance Group is exposed have been considered and ensures an appropriate 
level of capital, which is consistent with the Board’s risk appetite, is held against these risks. The ICAAP also ensures that there is 
adequate review , monitoring and reporting of actual and forecast capital position to the Board on a monthly basis. 

Key considerations of the Insurance Group’s ICAAP are return on capital targets, current and forecast profitability as defined in  
the annual budget process, capital structure, dividend payments, investment strategy , product mix, reserving strength and 
reinsurance arrangements. 
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3 Financial instruments and capital management (continued)

3.5 Capital Management (continued)

Regulatory capital (continued)

Incorporated within ICAAP are regular reviews of the Insurance Group’s capital needs and risk profile. In order to quantify the 
Insurance Group’s risk profile, a dynamic financial analysis is undertaken on an annual basis. This analysis incorporates a number  
of factors, such as current and future profitability , reinsurance arrangements, investment mix and the insurance liability profile.  
It also provides simulations of multiple scenarios to determine a range of impairment risk measures. The boards of the Insurance 
Group consider the risk of impairment measures through the annual risk appetite setting process to set a target and trading range  
of capital to sustain the business in the event of numerous adverse impacts.

3.6 Accounting policies for financial assets and financial liabilities 

Non-derivative financial assets

The RACQ Group initially recognises financial assets (including assets designated at fair value through profit or loss) on the trade date 
at which the Group becomes a part of the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Group derecognises a financial asset when 
the contractual rights to the cash flows from that asset expire, or it transfers substantially all risks and rewards of the financial asset. 

The Group has the following non-derivative financial assets:

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand , deposits held at call with financial institutions, and other short-term, highly liquid investments with 
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash. 

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held for trading or is designated as such upon 
initial recognition. Financial assets are designated at fair value through profit or loss if the Group manages such investments, 
evaluates the performance and makes purchases and sale decisions based on their fair value in accordance with the Group’s 
documented risk management or investment strategy . 

Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss when incurred . Financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss are measured at fair value on each reporting date, and changes therein are recognised in profit or loss. 

The Group has designated financial assets held in portfolios that broadly match the average duration of a corresponding  
insurance liability as assets backing general insurance liabilities. These financial assets include government and corporate bonds, 
mortgage-backed securities and other interest bearing financial assets. Assets backing general insurance liabilities are designated 
at fair value through profit or loss. 

 (iii) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method , less any impairment losses.  
Trade and other receivables are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment ,  
such as default or delinquency by a debtor . 

(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets

The Group’s investments in equity securities and certain debt securities (those that are not held to back general insurance liabilities) 
are classified as available-for-sale financial assets where they are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, but which may 
be sold in response to a need for liquidity or changes in interest rates. Available-for-sale financial assets are recognised initially at fair 
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes 
therein, other than impairment losses, are recognised directly in other comprehensive income and presented within equity in the 
investment revaluation reserve. When an investment is derecognised , the cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to surplus.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised by reclassifying the cumulative losses in the investment 
revaluation reserve in equity to surplus. The amount reclassified is the difference between the acquisition cost and the current  

fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in surplus. 
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3 Financial instruments and capital management (continued)

3.6 Accounting policies for financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Group initially recognises financial liabilities on the date at which the Group becomes a part of the contractual provisions of the 

instrument. The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged , cancelled or expire. 

(i) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 

recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method . Trade and other payables are unsecured ,  

non-interest bearing and are usually settled within 30 days.
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4 Other assets and liabilities

4. 1  Investment property

Investment property comprises land and buildings held for the purpose of either capital appreciation or to earn rental income,  

or both. The Group has chosen the cost model approach in accounting for investment properties. Accordingly investment properties 

are recorded at cost , less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Investment properties are 

depreciated on a straight line basis at 2.5% per annum. 

The table below presents the movement in the carrying amount of the investment properties:

  RACQ Group

 
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Carrying amount at beginning of year 7,552 7,707

Acquisitions – –

Depreciation expense ( 1 54) ( 1 55)

Carrying amount at the end of the year 7,398 7,552

Rental income from investment property is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. During the year 

to 30 June 20 1 5, rental income of $ 1 ,409, 1 69 was recognised in surplus (20 1 4: $ 1 ,397,278) and direct operating expenses, including 

repairs and maintenance associated with holding these investment properties, was $237,8 1  1  (20 1 4: $285,838).

4. 1 . 1  Measurement of fair values

The fair value of the investment properties has been determined by external, independent property valuers as at 5 September 20 1 4 

(20 1 4:  1 3 December 20 1 2). The fair value of the investments properties is $ 1 6,480,000 (20 1 4: $ 1 4,220,000). The valuation basis 

of investment properties is fair value having regard to the highest and best use of the asset. The independent valuer used the 

discounted cash flow approach to determine the fair value. 

The fair value measurement for all investment properties has been categorised as Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the 

valuation techniques used . 
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4 Other assets and liabilities (continued)

4.2 Property , plant and equipment

The composition of property , plant and equipment is as follows:

20 1 5 

Freehold 
land

$’000
Buildings

$’000

Plant and 
equipment

$’000

Capital 
works in 
progress

$’000
 Total
$’000

Cost

Balance at  1  July 20 1 4 20,830  1 6,728 92,589  1 ,6 1 4  1 3 1 ,76 1 

Additions – 64,4 1 9 476  1 7,39 1 82,286

Disposals – – (3,786) – (3,786)

Transfer from capital works in progress – – 9,399 (9,399) –

Balance at 30 June 20 1 5 20,830 8 1 , 1 47 98,678 9,606 2 1 0,26 1 

Depreciation and impairment loss

Balance at  1  July 20 1 4 – (4,733) (50,29 1 ) – (55,024)

Depreciation charge for the year – ( 1 ,325) (9,076) – ( 1 0,40 1 )

Disposals – – 2,253 – 2,253

Balance at 30 June 20 1 5 – (6,058) (57, 1  1 4) – (63, 1 72)

Carrying amounts

Carrying amounts as at  1  July 20 1 4 20,830  1  1 ,995 42,298  1 ,6 1 4 76,737

Carrying amounts as at 30 June 20 1 5 20,830 75,089 4 1 ,564 9,606  1 47,089

20 1 4 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Cost

Balance at  1  July 20 1 3 20,830  1 6,728 84,878  1 ,526  1 23,962

Additions – –  1 ,693 7,066 8,759

Disposals – – (960) – (960)

Transfer from capital works in progress – – 6,978 (6,978) –

Balance at 30 June 20 1 4 20,830  1 6,728 92,589  1 ,6 1 4  1 3 1 ,76 1 

Depreciation and impairment loss

Balance at  1  July 20 1 3 – (4,3 1 5) (4 1 ,303) – (45,6 1 8)

Depreciation charge for the year – (4 1 8) (8,979) – (9,397)

Disposals – – (9) – (9)

Balance at 30 June 20 1 4 – (4,733) (50,29 1 ) – (55,024)

Carrying amounts

Carrying amounts as at  1  July 20 1 3 20,830  1 2,4 1 3 43,575  1 ,526 78,344

Carrying amounts as at 30 June 20 1 4 20,830  1  1 ,995 42,298  1 ,6 1 4 76,737
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4 Other assets and liabilities (continued)

4.2 Property , plant and equipment (continued)

Accounting policies

(i) Recognition and measurement

Property , plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.  

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only 

when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group, and its cost can be 

measured reliably . Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as they are incurred . 

(ii) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the property , plant and equipment.  

Land is not depreciated . The depreciation rates used for each class of asset in the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Useful life

Buildings 40 years or lease term, if shorter

Plant and equipment 2.5 – 25 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each reporting date.

(iii) Impairment

Property , plant and equipment that is subject to depreciation is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 

circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. For further detail on impairment , refer to 4.3. 1 .
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4 Other assets and liabilities (continued)

4.3 Intangible assets

The composition of intangible assets is as follows:

20 1 5
Goodwill

$’000

Software 
and 

licensing 
costs
$’000

Customer 
relationships

$’000

Customer 
contracts

$’000

Outstanding 
claims 

fair value 
adjustment

$’000

Development 
costs
$’000

Total
$’000

Cost

Balance at  1  July 20 1 4 238,927  1 62,869 27,979 3,744 48,962 7,208 489,689

Additions – internally developed – – – – – 36, 1 24 36, 1 24

Additions – other additions – – – – – – –

Disposals – ( 1 3,364) – – – – ( 1 3,364)

Transfer from capital works  
in progress – 9,844 – – – (9,844) –

Balance at 30 June 20 1 5 238,927  1 59,349 27,979 3,744 48,962 33,488 5 1 2,449

Depreciation and impairment loss

Balance at  1  July 20 1 4 – (77,393) ( 1 9,423) (3,744) (37,298) – ( 1 37,858)

Amortisation charge for the year – (34, 1 0 1 ) (2,656) – (4,00 1 ) – (40,758)

Disposals –  1 3,364 – – – –  1 3,364

Balance at 30 June 20 1 5 – (98, 1 30) (22,079) (3,744) (4 1 ,299) –  1 65,252

Carrying amounts

Carrying amounts as at  1  July 20 1 4 238,927 85,476 8,557 –  1  1 ,664 7,208 35 1 ,83 1 

Carrying amounts as at 30 June 20 1 5 238,927 6 1 ,2 1 9 5,900 – 7,663 33,488 347, 1 97

20 1 4 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Cost

Balance at  1  July 20 1 3 238,927  1 44,923 27,979 3,744 48,962  1 5,380 479,9 1 5

Additions – internally developed –  1 5 – – – 9,843 9,858

Additions – other additions – – – – – – –

Disposals – (84) – – – – (84)

Transfer from capital works  
in progress –  1 8,0 1 5 – – – ( 1 8,0 1 5) –

Balance at 30 June 20 1 4 238,927  1 62,869 27,979 3,744 48,962 7,208 489,689

Depreciation and impairment loss

Balance at  1  July 20 1 3 – (45,58 1 ) ( 1 5,769) (3,744) (3 1 ,296) – (96,390)

Amortisation charge for the year – (3 1 ,8 1 2) (3,654) – (6,002) – (4 1 ,468)

Disposals – – – – – – –

Balance at 30 June 20 1 4 – (77,393) ( 1 9,423) (3,744) (37,298) – ( 1 37,858)

Carrying amounts

Carrying amounts as at  1  July 20 1 3 238,927 99,340  1 2,2 1  1 –  1 7,666  1 5,380 383,524

Carrying amounts as at 30 June 20 1 4 238,927 85,476 8,556 –  1  1 ,664 7,208 35 1 ,83 1 
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4 Other assets and liabilities (continued)

4.3 Intangible assets (continued)

4.3. 1  Impairment testing for cash-generating units containing goodwill

The aggregate carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each cash generating unit (CGU) is as follows:

  RACQ Group

 
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

RACQ Insurance Limited 238,208 238,208

Other CGU without significant goodwill 7 1 9 7 1 9

Carrying amount at end of year 238,927 238,927

The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined based on value-in-use calculations, determined by discounting the future 

cash flows generated from the continuing use of the CGUs based on cash flows projected from the financial forecasts approved 

by management covering a five-year period . These calculations require the use of assumptions, which represent management’s 

assessment of future trends in the industry , and are based on both external and internal sources of data. Key assumptions used  

in the calculation of recoverable amounts are as follows:

 Discount Rate
Terminal Value 

Growth Rate
Budgeted Average 

EBITDA Growth Rate

 
20 1 5

%
20 1 4

%
20 1 5

%
20 1 4

%
20 1 5

%
20 1 4

%

RACQ Insurance Limited 9.25  1 0.6 2.5 2.5 2. 1 (2.0)

The discount rate is a post-tax measure estimated based on past experience, and industry average weighted average cost of capital.  

A long-term growth rate into perpetuity has been determined that does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the industry .  

Budgeted EBITDA growth rate has been based on past experience, with adjustments where future activities are expected to differ 

materially from past performance. 

No impairment loss has been recognised (20 1 4: nil). A reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions is not expected to 

result in impairment. 

Accounting policies

(i) Recognition and measurement

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Other intangible assets, 

including customer relationships, which are acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives, are measured at cost less accumulated 

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Where an intangible asset is acquired in a business combination, the cost of that 

asset is its fair value at acquisition date. 

Development expenditure is capitalised only if the expenditure can be measured reliably , the product or process is technically and 

commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete 

development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognised in surplus as incurred . 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it 

relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in surplus as incurred .
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4 Other assets and liabilities (continued)

4.3 Intangible assets (continued)

4.3. 1  Impairment testing for cash-generating units containing goodwill (continued)

Accounting policies (continued)

(ii) Amortisation

Except for goodwill, intangible assets are amortised over the estimated useful life of the intangible asset from the date the asset is 

available for use. The amortisation bases used for each class of asset for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Basis Useful life

Software and licensing costs Straight line 4 years

Customer relationships Discounted cash flow  1 0 years

Net fair value of claims reserve Claims runoff  1 9 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each reporting date.

(iii) Impairment 

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether there is any 

indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated . Goodwill is tested  

annually for impairment. 

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together by the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows 

from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash generating units (CGU). 

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is based 

on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 

assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset or CGU. 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses 

are recognised in surplus. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to 

reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro-rata basis. 

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed . For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that 

the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined , net of depreciation or 

amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised . 
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4.4 Employee benefits

4.4. 1  Employee benefits expense

Employee benefits expense comprise:

  RACQ Group

 
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Wages and salaries  1 25,776  1  1 5,059

Defined contribution superannuation expenses 9,735 9,597

Expense related to defined benefit superannuation funds  1  1 0 343

  1 35,62 1  1 24,999

4.4.2 Employee benefits liabilities

Employee benefits liabilities comprise:

  RACQ Group

 
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Current  

Salaries and wages accrued 4,769 3,532

Liability for annual leave  1 2,602  1  1 ,935

Liability for long service leave 8,920 8,307

 26,29 1 23,774

Non-current 

Liability for long service leave 4,470 4, 1 46

 4,470 4, 1 46

Accounting policies

(i) Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefits represent the amount that the Group has a present obligation to pay resulting from employees’ 

services provided up to the reporting date, which are expected to be wholly settled within  1 2 months of the reporting date.  

They are measured at undiscounted amounts based on wage and salary rates that the Group expects to pay when the liability  

is settled , including related on-costs, such as workers compensation insurance and payroll tax.

(ii) Long-term benefits

The RACQ Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have 

earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The benefit is calculated using expected future increases in wage 

and salary rates, including related on-costs and expected settlement dates, and is discounted to determine its present value. 

Remeasurements are recognised in surplus in the period in which they arise. 

(iii) Superannuation 

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution superannuation funds are recognised as an expense as the related service  

is provided . 
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4.5 Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Group may obtain membership, insurance services, and other services and products from the 

Company and/or its controlled entity , RACQ Insurance Limited , on the same terms and conditions as those obtained by Company 

employees and are trivial or domestic in nature. 

No key management personnel have entered into a material contract with the Group since the end of the previous financial year 

and there were no material contracts involving key management personnel interests subsisting at 30 June 20 1 5. There are no loans 

to/from key management personnel.

4.5. 1  Key management personnel compensation 

Key management personnel compensation comprises:

  RACQ Group

 
20 1 5 

$
20 1 4

$

Short-term employee benefits 6,527,388  5,628,063 

Post-employment benefits 375,556  4 1 0,5 1 8 

Other long-term benefits 745,764  1 77,534 

Termination benefits 2 1 ,049 549,297 

 7,669,757 6,765,4 1 2 

The remuneration paid by RACQ Insurance Limited to RACQ directors, for their services as an RACQ Insurance Limited director during 

the year to June 20 1 5 totalled $476,8 1 0 (20 1 4: $425,864). Directors of all other subsidiary companies within the RACQ Group are not 

separately remunerated for their services to those subsidiary companies.

The Group Chief Executive Officer of The Royal Automobile Club of Queensland Limited , Mr Ian A Gillespie, is a director of RACQ 

Insurance Limited and Club Insurance Holdings Pty Ltd . Mr Gillespie acted in his role as the nominee for The Royal Automobile  

Club of Queensland Limited and was not separately remunerated .
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4 Other assets and liabilities (continued)

4.5 Transactions with key management personnel (continued)

4.5.2 Director Compensation

(i) Director compensation for The Royal Automobile Club of Queensland Limited

During the year , non-executive directors received the following fees for their service as directors on the boards described above 

(excluding the RACQ Insurance Limited Board). As of  1  January 20 1 5, directors receive $87,500 per annum with additional fees paid 

for committee work and chairman responsibilities. Fees paid are inclusive of superannuation.

 
20 1 5 

$
20 1 4

$

Nigel Alexander , Chairman*  1 37,27 1 86,743

Fay Barker  1 05,735 94,488

Campbell Charlton (appointed 22 May 20 1 4)  1 06,068  1 3,723

Arthur Gearon (appointed 23 April 20 1 5) 22,385 –

Dennis Howe (retired 3 1  December 20 1 3) – 45,988

Anthony Gambling* 98,8 1 7  1 02,488

Elizabeth Jameson*  1  1 3,427  1  1 0,488

Geoffrey Leddy* (retired 20 November 20 1 4) 79, 1 37  1 70,744

Stephen Maitland*  1  1  1 ,342 87,744

Bronwyn Morris*  1 08,536  1  1 0,393

Karl Morris  1 05,735 94,488

Richard Pietsch* (retired  1 3 December 20 1 4) 49,635 9 1 ,744

  1 ,038,088  1 ,009,03 1 

* Director of Club Insurance Holdings Pty Ltd while also a director of RACQ Insurance Limited . 

(ii) Director compensation for RACQ Insurance Limited

Directors of the Company who are also directors of RACQ Insurance Limited are paid fees by RACQ Insurance Limited . This remuneration 

is supplementary to the remuneration paid by the Company . As of  1  January 20 1 5 board fees have been restructured such that directors 

of RACQ Insurance Limited who also sit on The Royal Automobile Club of Queensland Limited Board receive $82,300 per annum and 

directors who do not sit on The Royal Automobile Club of Queensland Limited Board receive $ 1  1 3,000 per annum. Additional fees are  

paid for committee work and chairman responsibilities. Fees paid are inclusive of superannuation.

During the year non-executive directors received the following fees for their service as directors of RACQ Insurance Limited .  

Fees are inclusive of the services delivered for board and committee responsibilities.

 
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Nigel Alexander , Chairman (appointed as Chairman on  1  January 20 1 4)  1 65,727  1 35,744

Anthony Gambling (appointed 2 1  November 20 1 4) 68,909 –

Neville Ide  1 39,985  1 4 1 ,488

Elizabeth Jameson (appointed  1 3 March 20 1 5) 36,327 –

Raymond Jones  1 36,985  1 39,498

Geoffrey Leddy (retired 20 November 20 1 4) 3 1 ,90 1 80,744

Stephen Maitland (resigned  1 3 March 20 1 5) 65,569 98,744

Bronwyn Morris (appointed 5 March 20 1 4)  1 08,699 29,888

Richard Pietsch (retired 3 1  December 20 1 3) – 80,744

Vyn Tozer  1 45,639  1 29,488

 899,74 1 836,338

There were no other benefits received by directors during the year to June 20 1 5 (20 1 4: $nil).
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4.6 Unearned revenue

The unearned revenue at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

  RACQ Group

 
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Unearned premiums

Balance at the beginning of the year 342,662 334,3 1 5

Insurance premiums written during the year 704,600 702, 1 35

Insurance premiums earned during the year (704,207) (693,788)

Balance at the end of the year 343,055 342,662

 

Unearned member subscriptions 68,660 67,373

 

Total unearned revenue 4 1  1 ,7 1 5 4 1 0,035

Accounting policies

(i) Member subscriptions and entrance fees

Member subscriptions comprised amounts received from members for roadside assistance and other memberships.  

The earned portion to subscriptions received is recognised as revenue evenly over the membership period using the 365-day 

method (earned over one year). Subscriptions received applicable to the unexpired period of the membership term is recognised  

as unearned income. Entrance fees are recognised as revenue upon receipt. 

(ii) Unearned insurance premium liability

Premium revenue received or receivable but not earned at the reporting date is recognised as unearned premium liability .  

The unearned premium liability represents premium revenue that will be earned in subsequent reporting periods. 
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4.7 Income tax

4.7. 1  Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax and is recognised in surplus, except to the extent that it relates to items 

recognised directly in equity , in which case it is recognised in equity .

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year , using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the 

balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial 

reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be 

applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by  

the reporting date. 

The Company and its wholly-owned Australian resident entities are not part of a tax-consolidated group. As a consequence,  

each entity is separately assessed for tax.

Details of the aggregated current and deferred tax expense are as follows:

  RACQ Group

 
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Recognised in surplus  

Current tax expense:  

Current year  22,596 3 1 ,662

Adjustments for prior years  1 ,093 204

 23,689 3 1 ,866

Deferred tax expense:

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (3,9 1 0) (4,539)

Total income tax expense  1 9,779 27,327

  

Deferred tax recognised directly in equity  

Relating to remeasurement of defined benefit plan 354  1 86

Relating to available-for-sale financial assets  1 07  1 ,04 1 

Total income tax recognised directly in accumulated funds 46 1  1 ,227

4.7.2 Reconciliation of the prima facie income tax expense on operating surplus before tax

  RACQ Group

 
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Prima facie tax expense calculated at 30% (20 1 4: 30%) on operating surplus before tax 2 1 ,00 1 35,25 1 

 

Movement in income tax expense due to:

Non-deductible expenses 2 1 8 ( 1 6)

Mutual income and related deductions (826) (4,6 1 6)

Tax offset in franked dividends (7 1  1 ) (5 1 8)

Prior year under/(over) provision for research and development amendments (289) (3,204)

Prior year under/(over) provision other 386 430

Income tax expense/(benefit) on operating surplus  1 9,779 27,327
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4.7 Income tax (continued)

4.7.3 Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable surplus will be available against which the 

asset can be utilised . Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer 

probable that the related tax benefit will be realised .

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account the impact of uncertain tax positions and 

whether additional taxes and interest may be due. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a 

series of judgements about future events. New information may become available that causes the Group to change its judgement 

regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities. Such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such a 

determination is made.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

 Assets Liabilities Net

RACQ Group 
20 1 5

$’000
20 1 4

$’000
20 1 5

$’000
20 1 4

$’000
20 1 5

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Property , plant and equipment – –  (8,76 1 ) ( 1 4,279)  (8,76 1 ) ( 1 4,279)

Acquisition adjustment – –  (4,069) (6,066)  (4,069) (6,066)

Investments – –  (6,679) (7,354)  (6,679) (7,354)

Claims handling costs on 
outstanding claims   1 3,056  1 2,586 – –   1 3,056  1 2,586

Employee benefits  7,798 6,609 – –  7,798 6,609

Other items 2,493 2,26 1  (425) – 2,068 2,26 1 

Tax offsets carried forward  1 3,973  1 2,8 1 8 – –   1 3,973  1 2,8 1 8

Tax losses recognised 6,732  1 4,032 – –  6,732  1 4,032

Tax assets/(liabilities)  44,052 48,306 ( 1 9,934) (27,699)  24, 1  1 8 20,607

Set-off of tax  ( 1 9,934) (27,699)   1 9,934 27,699 – –

Net tax assets/(liabilities) 24, 1  1 8 20,607 – – 24, 1  1 8 20,607
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5 Other notes

5. 1  Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows

  RACQ Group

 
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Surplus for the year 50,225 90, 1 76

Add/(less) items classified as investing activities

Loss/(profit) on disposal of property , plant and equipment 44 (20)

Dividend income (2,377) ( 1 ,780)

Rental income (4,077) ( 1 ,397)

Interest income (57,487) (63,64 1 )

 

Add/(less) non-cash items

Impairment loss on investments 398  1 99

Impairment loss on receivables –  1 7

Depreciation and amortisation expense 5 1 , 1 59 50,865

Gain on sale of investments 3,746 5,5 1 2

Change of fair value of investments (2,327) 3,666

Change in value of equity accounted for investments 60 –

Contribution holiday taken for payments to RACQ Superannuation Fund 3,595 –

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities before change in net assets and liabilities 42,959 83,597

 

Change in assets and liabilities

Trade and other receivables (5,6 1 5) (3, 1 90)

Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable (37,322)  1 9, 1 40

Other assets (2, 1 89) (904)

Deferred acquisition costs (3,594) (264)

Unearned revenue  1 ,680  1 0,634

Trade and other payables 25,286 (2,767)

Outstanding claims liability 56,645 3,857

Provision for employee benefits 2,84 1 2,887

Deferred tax balances (3,5 1  1 ) (3,3 1 3)

Income tax payable (24,725) 5,325

Other non-current assets  1 0 –

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 52,465  1  1 5,002
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5.2 Equity accounted for investments

The Group’s interest in equity-accounted investees comprises interests in associates. Associates are those entities in which the 

Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and operating policies. Interests in associates are accounted for 

using the equity method . They are initially recognised at cost and subsequently adjusted to include the Group’s share of the profit  

or loss of equity-accounted investees. 

The Group has a 33.3% interest in Australian Club Consortium Pty Ltd . During the financial year , Australian Club Consortium 

commenced operations. Australian Club Consortium is a strategic supplier for the RACQ group and is principally involved in the 

investigation and investment in systems, products and services beneficial to automotive clubs in Australia. Australian Club Consortium 

is not publicly listed . 

The table below summarises the financial position of Australian Club Consortium Pty Ltd as included in its own financial statements. 

  RACQ Group

 
20  1  5 

$’000
20  1  4

$’000

Percentage ownership interest held in entity by Group 33.3% 33.3%

Current assets 2,238 3

Non-current assets 3,079 –

Current liabilities 2,495 –

Non-current liabilities – –

Net assets (  1  00%) 2,822 3

Group’s share of net assets 94   1      1   

Carrying amount of interest in associate 94   1      1   

Revenue – –

Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations   1  00% (   1   80) –

Total comprehensive income – –

Group’s share of loss (60) –

Below is a reconciliation of the financial position reported by Australian Club Consortium Pty Ltd and the carrying amount of the 

Group’s interest in the entity as at 30 June 20 1 5.

  RACQ Group

 
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Carrying amount of interest in associate at beginning of period   1    1  

New investment made during period   1  ,000 –

Share of loss from operations (60) –

Carrying amount of interests in associate at end of period 94  1    1  
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5.3 Leases and commitments

The Group leases property under operating leases expiring from one to six years. Leases generally provide the Group with a right of 

renewal at which time all terms are renegotiated . Some leases provide for additional rent payments that are based on changes in a 

price index. Payments made under operating leases are recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

Commitments not provided for in the  
financial statements and payable:

< 1  Year
$’000

 1 -5 Years
$’000

5+ Years
$’000

Total
$’000

20  1  5

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments 3,925 9,4  1  3 998   1  4,336

Property , plant and equipment commitments 3,058 – – 3,058

Intangible asset commitments 2,9  1  3 269 – 3,  1  82

20  1  4

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments 3,988   1  0,069 2,  1  4  1    1  6,  1  98

Property , plant and equipment commitments 3  1  ,  1  62 – – 3  1  ,  1  62

Intangible asset commitments – – – –

During the year to 30 June 20  1  5, minimum operating lease payments of $4,652,335 were recognised (20  1  4: $4,052,422).

Future revenues not provided for in the 
financial statements and receivable:

< 1  Year
$’000

 1 -5 Years
$’000

5+ Years
$’000

Total
$’000

20  1  5

Operating lease revenue as lessor 4,889   1  3,602 682   1  9,  1  73

20  1  4

Operating lease revenue as lessor   1  ,4  1  6 5,857 – 7,273
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5.4 Auditors’ remuneration

The following services were provided by the Group’s auditor during the reporting period:

  RACQ Group

 
20 1 5 

$
20 1 4

$

Audit services:

Auditors of the Group – KPMG Australia  

Audit of the financial report 266,8  1  4 240,200

Other regulatory audit services 58,400 57,200

 325,2  1  4 297,400

Audit-related services:

Auditors of the Group – KPMG Australia

Actuarial services 54,500 52,000

Other assurance 44,297 –

 98,797 52,000

Other services:

Auditors of the Group – KPMG Australia

Taxation services 338,  1  72 3  1  8,9  1  2

IT Advisory services   1  3,238 73,664

Other advisory services 58,448 70,2  1  9

 409,858 462,795
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5.5 Group structure

5.5. 1  Parent entity disclosures

The parent entity , The Royal Automobile Club of Queensland Limited , is a company limited by guarantee and has no share capital. 

In the event of winding up, members are liable to the amount of $2.00 per member . The Company has  1 ,355,356 (20 1 4:  1 ,296, 1 2 1 ) 

guaranteeing members. 

 

The Royal 
Automobile Club of 
Queensland Limited

 
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Surplus for the year  1  1 ,633 22,382

Other comprehensive income – –

Total comprehensive income for the year  1  1 ,633 22,382

 

The Royal 
Automobile Club of 
Queensland Limited

 
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Financial position of the Company as at the end of the year:  

Current assets 597,02  1  628,926

Total assets 738,996 700,233

 

Current liabilities 233,423 206,293

Total liabilities 233,423 206,293

Total accumulated funds of the Company comprising of:  

Retained surplus 505,573 493,940

Total accumulated funds 505,573 493,940

Parent entity guarantees in respect of debts of its subsidiaries

The parent entity has entered into a Deed of Cross Guarantee (“the Deed”) with the effect that the Company guarantees debts in 

respect of its subsidiaries. Further details, including the subsidiaries subject to the Deed are disclosed in Notes 5.5.2 and 5.5.3.
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5.5 Group structure (continued)

5.5.2 Controlled entities

The following depicts the Group structure and the interest held in each controlled entity:

  Interest held

 
20 1 5 

%
20 1 4

%

RACQ Operations Pty Ltd 2  1 00  1 00

The Road Ahead Publishing Co Pty Ltd 2  1 00  1 00

RACQ Investments Pty Ltd 2  1 00  1 00

Club Equities Pty Ltd  1 00  1 00

Club Equities Holdings Pty Ltd  1 00  1 00

 

RACQ Investments No.2 Pty Ltd 2  1 00  1 00

Club Insurance Holdings Pty Ltd  1  1 00  1 00

RACQ Insurance Limited  1 00  1 00

 

RACQ Foundation Pty Ltd  1 00  1 00

RACQ Foundation Fund  1 00  1 00

RACQ Foundation Trust  1 00  1 00

 1   50% of the shares in Club Insurance Holdings Pty Ltd are held by RACQ Investments Pty Ltd , and 50% of the shares in Club Insurance Holdings Pty Ltd 
are held by RACQ Investments No.2 Pty Ltd . 

2  Subsidiaries are parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee, as described in Note 5.5.3. 
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5.5 Group structure (continued)

5.5.3 Deed of cross guarantee

Pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/ 1 4 1 8 (as amended) dated  1 3 August  1 998, RACQ Operations Pty Ltd is relieved from the  

Corporations Act 200 1  requirements for preparation, audit , and lodgment of a financial report , and a directors’ report. It is a condition  

of the Class Order that the Company and each of the subsidiaries noted in Note 5.4.2 enter into a Deed of Cross Guarantee.  

The effect of the Deed is that the Company guarantees to each creditor payment in full of any debt in the event of winding up of 

any of the subsidiaries under certain provisions of the Corporations Act 200 1 . If a winding up occurs under other provisions of the 

Corporations Act 200 1 , the Company will only be liable in the event that after six months any creditor has not been paid in full.  

The subsidiaries have also given similar guarantees in the event that the Company is wound up.

A consolidated statement of comprehensive income and consolidated balance sheet , comprising the Company and controlled 

entities which are party to the Deed , after eliminating all transactions between parties to the Deed , for the year ended 30 June 20 1 5 

is set out as follows:

 
Consolidated 

parties to the Deed

 
20 1 5 

$’000
20 1 4

$’000

Revenue 309,655 347,854

Expenses 262,603 247,869

Surplus before tax 47,052 99,985

Share of profit/(loss) of equity-accounted for investments in Associates (60) –

Income tax expense (2,362) 497

Surplus for the year 44,630   1  00,482

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Defined benefit plan actuarial gains   1  ,  1  79 6  1  9

Income tax expense (354) (  1  86)

Total items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 825 433

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Net change in fair value of financial assets held as available-for-sale (  1  95) 3,088

Net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets sold reclassified to profit or loss 550 38  1  

Income tax expense (  1  07) (  1  ,04  1  )

Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 248 2,428

Total other comprehensive income for the year , net of income tax   1  ,073 2,86  1  

Total comprehensive income for the year 45,703   1  03,343
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5.5 Group structure (continued)

5.5.3 Deed of cross guarantee (continued)

 
Consolidated 

parties to the Deed

 
20  1  5 

$’000
20  1  4

$’000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 27,605 25,238

Trade and other receivables 92,   1   26 79,544

Investment securities 89,805   1  43,830

Other current assets 8,048 7,050

Total current assets 2  1  7,584 255,662
 

Investment securities 684,028 655,850

Investment property 7,398 7,552

Property , plant and equipment   1  42,029 69,30  1  

Intangible assets 95,423 93,404

Deferred tax assets   1  7,497   1  5,870

Other non-current assets 8,28  1    1    1  ,448

Investment in associates 94  1    1  

Total non-current assets 955,597 853,426
Total assets   1  ,  1  73,  1  8  1    1  ,  1  09,088
 

Liabilities
Trade and other payables 42,388 26,966

Unearned revenue 68,659 67,373

Current tax payable 3,428 2,790

Employee benefits 22,460 2  1  ,740

Total current liabilities   1  36,935   1    1  8,869
 

Employee benefits 4,470 4,  1  46

Total non-current liabilities 4,470 4,  1  46
 

Total liabilities   1  4  1  ,405   1  23,0  1  5
 

Net assets   1  ,03  1  ,776 986,073
 

Accumulated funds
Reserves   1  0,345   1  0,097

Retained surplus   1  ,02  1  ,43  1  975,976

Total accumulated funds   1  ,03  1  ,776 986,073

5.6 Contingent liability

As at reporting date, there have not arisen any events which give rise to a contingent liability (20 1 4: $500,000) of the Group or  
its subsidiaries. 

5.7 Events subsequent to reporting date

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial period and the date of this report any item, transaction or event 
of a material and unusual nature likely , in the opinion of the directors of the Company , to affect significantly the operations of the 
Group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group, in future financial years. 
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Directors’ Declaration 

 1 .   In the opinion of the directors of The Royal Automobile Club of Queensland Limited (the “Company”):

 a)  the consolidated financial statements and notes, set out on pages 3 1  to 74, are in accordance with the  

Corporations Act 200 1 , including:

  (i)  giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the RACQ Group as at 30 June 20 1 5 and of its  

performance, for the financial year ended on that date; and

  (ii)  with Australian Accounting Standards (including Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the  

Corporations Regulations 200 1 ; and

 b)  There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when  

they become due and payable.

2.  There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company and the subsidiaries identified in Note 5.5.2 will be able to meet 

any obligations or liabilities to which they are or may become subject to by virtue of the Deed of Cross Guarantee between 

the Company and those controlled entities pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/ 1 4 1 8.

3.  The directors draw attention to Note  1  to the consolidated financial statements, which includes a statement of compliance 

with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

Nigel WF Alexander

Chairman

Dated at Brisbane  

this 24th day of September 20 1 5
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
to the members of The Royal Automobile Club of Queensland Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial report of The Royal Automobile Club of Queensland Limited (the company), 

which comprises the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 30 June 20 1 5, and Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 

Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year 

ended on that date, Notes  1  to 5.7 comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and 

the directors’ declaration of the Group comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the year’s end or from time to time 

during the financial year .

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance 

with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 200 1  and for such internal control as the directors determine is 

necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error . 

In Note  1 , the directors also state, in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard AASB  1 0 1  Presentation of Financial Statements, 

that the financial statements of the Group comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 

Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit 

engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material 

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement , including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial report , whether due to fraud or error . In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to 

the entity’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit 

also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 

the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We performed the procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly , in accordance with 

the Corporations Act 200 1  and Australian Accounting Standards, a true and fair view which is consistent with our understand of the 

Group’s financial position and of its performance.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member firm of the KPMG 
network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG 
International Cooperative (‘KPMG International’), a Swiss entity .

Liability limited by a scheme approved under 
Professional Standards Legislation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
to the members of The Royal Automobile Club of Queensland Limited

Independence

In conduction our audit , we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 200 1 .

Auditor’s opinion

In our opinion:

(a) the financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations Act 200 1 , including:

 (i)  giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 30 June 20 1 5 and of its performance for the year ended 

on that date; and

 (ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 200 1 .

(b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note  1 .

KPMG

Robert S Jones 
Partner

Brisbane 

24 September 20 1 5
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Lead Auditor’s  
Independence Declaration

To: the directors of The Royal Automobile Club of Queensland Limited

I declare that , to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit for the financial year ended 30 June 20 1 5  

there have been:

(i)  no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 200 1  in relation  

to the audit; and

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

 

KPMG

 

Robert Jones 
Partner

Brisbane 

25 September 20 1 4

Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration
under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 200 1 

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member firm of the KPMG 
network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG 
International Cooperative (‘KPMG International’), a Swiss entity .

Liability limited by a scheme approved under 
Professional Standards Legislation.
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Member retention  
rate stands at 90% 
and each member  
has at least two  
RACQ products.

Our road test team 
drove and evaluated 
270 new vehicles for 
reports and reviews 
in The Road Ahead 
magazine and for the 
annual Australia’s  
Best Cars awards. 

RACQ’s 39 travel 
consultants from  
 1 3 offices around 
the state booked 
6552 domestic and 
international trips  
in 20 1 4/ 1 5.

The Road Ahead recorded an annual circulation of  
8.4 million, with the digital version of our member 
magazine accounting for  1 .08 million of that number .  
The Road Ahead Lifestyle website attracted a total  
of  1 ,933, 1 09 page views for the year . Our  1 4 Road Ahead 
Lifestyle e-newsletters were distributed to 794, 1 93 
subscribers each month. Introduced in April 20 1 4,  
the magazine’s mobile app has been downloaded  
5,057 times in the first  1 5 months.

RACQ’s online Tourist 
Information Centre 
continues to be a  
popular source of travel 
information with over 
7 1 ,000 visits. Our online  
Trip Planner received  
over 7 1 5,000 visits. 

Fast Facts
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Club Patron 
His Excellency Mr Paul de Jersey AC  

Governor of Queensland

President and Chairman 
Nigel WF Alexander 
BBus, MAppFin, FCPA, FAICD

GROUP LEADERSHIP TEAM

Group Chief Executive Officer   
Ian A Gillespie 
BA, Dip Laws(BAB), FCEOI, MAICD, FAIM, CCEO

Chief Information Officer  
Gregory R Booker 
MBA, MMgmnt , GAICD

Chief Executive Officer , Insurance  
Bradley P Heath  
B.Bus Acc, GAICD

Group Chief Financial Officer  
Michael Lonergan 
BBus, CPA, G.Dip App Fin

Chief Executive Officer , Operations  
Glenn A Toms 
BBus, G.Dip Fin & Inv, FFin, FAIM, GAICD

Chief Development Officer  
Christopher P Walsh  
BCom

Auditors 
KPMG 

Riparian Plaza Level  1 6, 7 1  Eagle Street Brisbane QLD 4000

Registered Head Office 
2649 Logan Road Eight Mile Plains QLD 4 1  1 3 

Telephone: 6 1  7 336 1  2444 

Facsimile:  6 1  7 334 1  8024 

Email:   racq@racq.com.au 

Website:  racq.com

Postal Address 
PO Box 4 Springwood QLD 4 1 27 

ACN 009 660 575 ABN 72 009 660 575

Corporate  
Directory

STORES AND MAJOR AGENCIES

Brisbane

Browns Plains – Grand Plaza Shopping Centre

Carindale – Westfield Carindale Shopping Centre

City –  1 03 Adelaide Street , Brisbane

Chermside – Westfield Chermside Shopping Centre

Eight Mile Plains – RACQ Operations Centre, 2649 Logan Road

Inala – Inala Plaza

Indooroopilly – Indooroopilly Shopping Centre

Mitchelton/Brookside – Brookside Shopping Centre

Strathpine – Westfield Strathpine Shopping Centre

Other Areas

Beenleigh – Beenleigh Mall, Main Street

Bundaberg – 249 Bourbong Street

Cairns – Stockland Shopping Centre, Earlville

Caloundra –  1 04 Bulcock Street

Capalaba – Capalaba Central Shopping Centre,  

38-62 Moreton Bay Road

Elanora – The Pines Shopping Centre, Guineas Creek Road

Gladstone – 50 Hanson Road

Gympie – Goldfields Plaza, 7 1  Monkland Street

Hervey Bay – 92 Boat Harbour Drive

Ipswich – Riverlink Shopping Centre,  

Downs Street and The Terrace, North Ipswich

Mackay – Caneland Central,  

Cnr Victoria Street and Mangrove Road

Maroochydore – 25-33 Cornmeal Parade

Maryborough – Comet Place,  1 33 Lennox Street

Morayfield – Morayfield Shopping Centre, Morayfield Road

Nambour – 23-25 Currie Street

Nerang – My Centre, Station Street

Noosaville – Noosa Civic, 28 Eenie Creek Road

Redcliffe – Blue Water Square,  

Cnr Anzac Avenue and Sutton Street

Robina – Robina Town Centre, Arbour Court

Rockhampton – Red Hill Homemaker Centre, Yaamba Road , 

North Rockhampton

Southport West – 239 Nerang Road

Toowoomba – Clifford Gardens Shopping Centre,  

Cnr James Street and Anzac Ave

Townsville – 202 Ross River Road , Aitkenvale

Warwick – Rose City Shopping World , Palmerin Street 
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